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OFFICIAL SIGN-OFF

Chris Hani Development Agency (CHDA), State Owned Company (SOC), wholly owned by Chris Hani
District Municipality, its Leadership hereby certified that, the Annual Report for the 2023/24 Financial Year,
as developed and presented by management, complied with all the legislative prescripts and other
mandates as per responsibilities of the Municipal Entity.

ACCRONYMS AND ABBREVIATIONS

>

P Annual Performance Plan

CHDA Chris Hani Development Agency

CHDM Chris Hani District Municipality

CHREDS Chris Hani Regional Economic Development Strategy

CRDP Comprehensive Rural Development Plan
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District Development Model’s

DFI's Developmental Finance Institutions

[\ District Municipality
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Eastern Cape
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Further Education and Training College

Integrated Development Plan

Py,

€ Intergovernmental Relations Framework

IPED Integrated Planning and Economic Development

MEMA Municipal Finance Management Act, Act No. 56 of 2003

<
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>

Municipal Systems Act, Act No. 32 of 2000

MSAA Municipal Systems Amendment Act, Act No. 44 of 2003

pzd
)
o

National Development Plan

PIDS Provincial Industrial Development Strategy

PFMA Public Finance Management Act

PGDP Provincial Growth and Development Plan

SETA Sectoral Educational and Training Authority

SMME Small Micro and Medium Enterprises

SOC State Owned Company
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PART 1: THE OVERVIEW OF THE HIGH-LEVEL SUMMARY
PERFOMANCE

High Level Org Perfomance Summary

Not Achieved(40%) -...
Achieved ( 53%)- 24

Par Achieved (6.6%)-3

SUMMARY PERFORMANCE BY STRATEGIC 2023-2024
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LEGISLATIVE FRAMEWORK

The Annual Report of the municipal entity is prepared in relation to the annual performance report and
annual financial statements which form part of the Annual Report each financial year in accordance with
the Municipal Systems Act 2000 (MSA) section 46, and the Municipal Finance Management Act 2003
(MFMA) section 121.

The following legislative requirements were considered during the compilation of the Annual Report.

. The Constitution (1996),

. Local Government: Municipal Structures Act (1998) (MSA),

. Local Government: Municipal Systems Act (2000), (MSA),

. Local Government: Municipal Planning and Performance Regulations (2001),

. Local Government: Municipal Finance Management Act (2003) (MFMA),

. Local Government: Municipal Systems Amendment Act (2003),

. Local Government: Municipal Performance Regulations for Municipal Managers and Managers
directly accountable to Municipal Managers (2006),

. MFMA Circular 11 (Annual Report Guidelines),

. MFMA Circular 13 (SDBIP),

. MFMA Circular 32 (Oversight Report),

. Municipal Public Accounts Committee Guidelines

The CHDA Annual Report for the year ended 2023/24, is aligned with the planning documents and the
municipal entity’s budget for the year under review. These documents include, the CHDA-Five-year
Strategic Document, Annual Budget, Annual Performance Plan, in-year reports, and finally incorporated in
the Annual Financial Statements (AFS) and Annual Performance Report (APR).
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PART 2: FOREWORD BY THE EXECUTIVE MAYOR

The Council of Chris Hani District Municipality took a
decision to establish a Regional Economic Development
Agency in 2012, through its Regional Economic
Development Strategy, as the mechanism to fast track
major economic development programmes, through
Investment promotion, facilitation and resource
mobilization.
We are also charged by the District Development Model to
facilitate the Local Economic Development and coordinate
the implementation of programmes of the sector
departments. This then means that the District
Municipality though the Chris Hani Developemnt Agency
(CHDA), should serve as a catalyst for Local Economic
Development.
CLLR: LUSANDA SIZANI This report encompasses the achievements recorded
EXECUTIVE MAYOR during the 2023/24 financial year in pursuit of the
Chris Hani District Municipality objectives and targets as set out in the CHDA Strategic
30 November 2024 Document for 2023 — 2028 and Annual Perfomance Plan
(APP) 2023-2024.

The mandate of the Chris Hani Development Agency as outlined in the CHDA Strategic Document will lead
the following:
o the Realization of Organizational Sustainability and Funding Opportunities to Enable the
Development Mandate.
e the Facilitation of Investment and Trade Promotion in District Corridors.
e the Facilitation of Economic Development in District Corridors; and
¢ the Support of Economic Enabling Infrastructure Development.

Added to this, the CHDA would need to focus on the adopted Chris Hani Regional Economic Development
Strategy grounded by the concept of Multi-Sectoral Corridor Development supported by Value Chain
Development programmes as one of the key District Economic Development Framework to achieve the
above mandate. The CHDA strategic objectives must be aligned with this framework.

We are implementing our Vision 2030 programme and One Plan in collaboration with all our stakeholders
using the District Development Model's (DDM), One Government - One District Plan Service Delivery
initiative. It has steered in a prolific Intergovernmental Relations Framework (IGR) platform for the
coordination and facilitation of agenda through catalytic projects across all spheres of Government. CHDA
focuses on this to achieve Local Economic Development.

HON EXECUTIVE MAYOR
CLLR LUSANDA SIZANI
30 NOVEMBER 2024
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PART 3: CHAIRPERSON’S STATEMENT
REPORT OF THE INTERIM BOARD CHAIRPERSON

| am pleased to present the Chris Hani Development
Agency (CHDA) Annual Report for the 2023-2024 financial
year, as the Interim Chairperson of the Board. The
financial year 2023/2024 has been both challenging and
full of triumphs. | am proud of what we have accomplished
together as the Shareholder, the Board and Management
and the entire staff of CHDA. We have made significant
progress towards our strategic goals in relation to our
focus on implementation of the local economic
development initiatives, as well as investment and
promotion within the Chris Hani District, through
agriculture and Agri - processing, SMME development, job
creation and leveraging on economic opportunities to

WELEKAZI DUKUZA facilitate development.
BOARD CHAIRPERSON (INTERIM)
Chris Hani Development Agency
30 November 2024

FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY

Our country, and the Chris Hani District, have experienced
many economic challenges which includes, inter-alia, high unemployment, persistent poverty, inadequate
infrastructure, frequent power cuts (load-shedding) and lack of skills development which impedes economic
growth and impact on the quality of life of many South African citizens.

CHDA financial health remains a challenge, however, the Agency has embarked on identifying some
catalytic projects that could potentially turn-around its financial viability. This will provide us with a solid
foundation for future investments and expansion, whilst we focus on service delivery initiatives.

RESOURCE MOBILISATION

The CHDA has embarked on a drive to promote a culture of innovation at all levels with a focus on efficient
and effective utilization and deployment of resources. These strategic goals have jointly and individually
contributed to the realization of the mandate as indicated by the parent municipality — Chris Hani District
Municipality (CHDM) and to ensure financial sustainability, good governance and increased stakeholder
confidence.

This shall further be achieved through developing the CHDA leadership, promoting innovation, and
increasing staff capacity and skills at all levels. The guidance from the shareholder, and the oversight role
from the Board, is paramount to the successful implementation of this strategy. Employee commitment and
the fortitude of management are required to ensure the achievement of the set targets over the five-year
strategic period.

STAKEHOLDER MANAGEMENT AND PARTNERSHIPS
The CHDA has continued its investment into key development synergies and partnerships. In the year
under review, we have continued in maintaining these relationships to ensure that development

partnerships yield desired results and contribute to the district development agenda and mandate of the
CHDA.
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These key relationships included ongoing working partnerships with the Sectoral Education and Training
Authorities (SETA’s) in skills development programmes, the Eastern Cape Department of Rural
Development and Agrarian Reform (ECDRDAR), Local Municipalities, Chris Hani Co-operative
Development Centre (CHCDC) and the parent municipality, CHDM, amongst others.

As the CHDA, we continue to be grateful for these partnerships and look forward to a continued working
relationship. We wish to thank each of them for their continued support in implementing agency
programmes across various communities and assisting with additional capacity and resources. We have
further focused on outreach programmes with the District Municipality to improve efforts of strengthening
our ties with the community.

GOVERNANCE

During the year, a strategic planning session was held with the Shareholder, the Board and Management
to ensure alignment in carrying out its mandate. The CHDA is further committed in ensuring transparency
and accountability through its continued reviewed systems and controls to protect the interests of all the
stakeholders.

We conduct regular audits (internal and external) and review compliance to assess adherence to regulatory
framework, whilst effectively managing risks, and ensuring effective governance. We acknowledge the
importance of compliance in our operations and are taking steps to ensure that we meet regulatory
requirements while adhering to best governance practices. | thank our parent municipality and the Board
members for the invaluable guidance and support that they have provided, as they have brought a wealth
of experience and diverse perspectives, enhancing our governance and oversight.

THE YEAR-AHEAD

During the year, CHDA faced several challenges, which have had an unfortunate impact on the non-
achievement of some of the performance targets set. Some of these challenges have arisen precisely
because of the dynamics of working with partners in many of the agency’s programmes and projects, non-
receipt or late-receipt of funding from third parties, budget cuts for LED programmes, as well as key
vacancies in the organogram that remained vacant at the end of June 2024.

The following financial year will see reinforced focus on consolidating the organization’s performance, as
well as improving the financial sustainability of the organization through own-revenue generation and
targeted fundraising efforts. We look forward to an improved set of business results in 2024-2025. We
commit to strengthening engagements with the shareholder, and our partnerships with the identified
stakeholders, to build and restore their trust and confidence.

AUDIT OUTCOME

Regretfully, the Agency has obtained a qualified audit report from the Auditor-General South Africa (AGSA).
This emphasized the importance of focusing on good internal controls, accurate financial reporting and
accountability. The Agency’s governance structures have committed to focus their oversight responsibilities
to ensuring that management improves the audit outcome for the 2024-25 financial year.

CONCLUSION

| express gratitude to our shareholder, stakeholders and partners, together with Management and the
CHDA staff, who contributed to the success of the Agency thus far. Their contribution has fostered a sense
of unity and motivation throughout the year. The CHDA implores them to continue their efforts to ensure
the agency’s strategic goals, its mission and vision is achieved for the benefit of our communities within the
Chris Hani District.
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The support of the Chris Hani District Municipality, together with our local municipalities, is highly recognized
in shaping-up the Agency in fulfilling its responsibilities. While appreciating the efforts of the Board of
Directors, the need for their continued work to bolster the effectiveness and relevance of the Agency and
its financial sustainability, cannot be over emphasized. The CHDA remains committed to its mandate in
contributing to the strategic pillars of our government and looking forward to a better upcoming year.

R

MS WELEKAZ| DUKUZA
BOARD CHAIRPERSON (INTERIM)
30 NOVEMBER 2024
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PART 4: ORGANISATIONAL OVERVIEW

GENERAL INFORMATION

Registered name: Chris Hani Development Agency SOC Ltd

Registration 2012/033437/30
number:
Municipal entity (state owned company)

NEIV OIS Carry out the promotion and implementation of the local economic development (LED)
initiatives and investment promotion in Chris Hani District, through agriculture and

agri - processing, SMME development, facilitation of investment promotion and job creation,
sector — specific skills development and partnerships for leveraging of economic opportunities
to facilitate development.

RERSCICO Nl 15 Warner Street, Southbourne, Queenstown, 5320

address:

15 Warner Street, Southbourne, Queenstown, 5320
Contact Tel: 045 — 807 4000,
information: Fax: 045 — 838 5944
Email:  info@chda.org.za
Website: www.chda.org.za
Auditor General South Africa (AGSA)
Internal auditors: Sizwe Ntsaluba Gobodo — Grant Thornton
Cube 2 Cedar Square, Bonza Bay Road, Beacon Bay, 5241
Tel: 043 — 721 1180

Fax: 043 -
Website: www.sng.za.com
Company William Radcliffe Attorneys
Secretary: 2" Floor, Block C, Edenburg Terraces, 348 Rivonia Boulevard, Johannesburg

Tel: 081 046 1379
Email: jameson.matiza@williamradcliffe.co.za
Website: www.williamradcliffe.co.za

First National Bank of South Africa (FNB)

MISSION VISION AND VALUE STATEMENT
An economic growth Catalyst for the Chris Hani District

Mission To unlock the economic potential of the Region through investment facilitation for corridor
development

\EUETS Value Underlying Principle

Commitment To all we do, and the communities which we serve

Honesty In all our dealings, and all our interactions with stakeholders

Respect For ourselves, our brand, our stakeholders, development partners and
communities which we serve

Integrity In all our actions, dealings and delivery of programmes and interventions

Sincerity In all we do, with a genuine concern and desire to meet the needs of the
communities which we serve

Humanity In our understanding and empathy for the needs of our community

Accountability In all that we do, to our shareholder, communities we serve, and the
general public

Nurturing For our communities and vulnerable groupings of society

Innovation In constantly seeking to improve what we do, how we do it and how best

we can deliver to the communities which we serve
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PURPOSE AND STRATEGIC MANDATE:

The primary purpose of establishing this entity was based on the Chris Hani District Municipality’s integrated
regional economic development strategy (CHREDS). At the Centre of this strategy was a focus on the
development of corridor multi-sector initiatives which would be supported by value chain addition
programmes as a means of facilitating and achieving local economic development in the district.

It was thus envisaged that on establishment, the CHDA would be a self-sustainable entity tasked with co-
ordination of regional economic development within the Chris Hani District Municipality, and from the year
2012 the primary focus of the Chris Hani Development Agency was to unlock the economic potential of the
identified corridors within the Chris Hani District Municipality through partnerships and investments as well
as to increase economic growth rates, as well as reduce poverty and unemployment. The corridors that
were identified for development within the Chris Hani District were as follows:

1. Sisulu Development Corridor (running along the R61, linking Engcobo, Cofimvaba, Queenstown,
Tarkastad and Cradock),

2. Ndondo Development Corridor (running along the R394, linking Elliot, Cala, Lady Frere,
Queenstown) and the

3. Calata Development Corridor (running along the N10, linking Whittlesea, Queenstown, Molteno,
Middleburg to Cradock).

After the CHDA was established, the focus of the agency was mainly directed towards the revitalization of
the 4 big irrigation schemes within the Chris Hani District Municipality, so that these irrigation schemes
would produce and supply food to the District and the Eastern Cape Province at large. Other programmes
were also implemented by the CHDA during this period, but some challenges were faced to the extent that
a pivot from the approved development corridor approach mandate was experienced.

After careful consideration of the path taken by the CHDA over these past years, a review of the mandate
to re-direct it to its initial purpose became necessary. As a result, on the 28th of August 2019, a Council
Resolution was taken by the Chris Hani District Municipality for the mandate of the CHDA to be reviewed,
as follows:

STRATEGY AND STRATEGIC FOCUS:

The mandate and the planned development outcomes informed the strategic direction of the agency over
the last 5 years of operations, and these strategic programmes are aligned to the parent municipality’s IDP
objectives. These were secured in a Service Level Agreement (SLA) between the agency and the CHDM
and have served the basis of structuring the agency’s Annual Performance Plan (APP) for the year.

The strategic programmes for 2023-2024 were:
e To develop a proficient, viable and self-sustainable entity by 2028
¢ To mobilize funding and facilitate investment promotion into the district by 2028

e To develop economically viable and sustainable rural corridors by 2028
e To support implementation of enabling infrastructure projects in the district by 2028
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PART 5: GOVERNANCE
Board, Leadership and Management:

Corporate governance embodies processes and systems by which municipal entities are directed,
controlled and held to account. In addition to legislative requirements based on the applicable enabling
legislation, and the Companies Act, corporate governance with regard to the CHDA is applied through the
prescripts of the Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA) and run-in tandem with the principles
contained in the updated King IV Report on Corporate Governance.

The Accounting Authority / Board of Directors:

The Board of Directors (Board) of CHDA represents the organization’s system of corporate governance
and is ultimately responsible for the performance and affairs of the agency. Good governance is regarded
as critical to the success of the CHDA, and the Board is unreservedly committed to applying the
fundamental principles of good governance in every way. This involved ensuring transparency,
integrity, accountability and responsibility in all dealings by, and on behalf, of the CHDA.

The Board embraces the principles of good governance as set out in the King Code of Governance for
South Africa 2009 and the King Code of Governance Principles (collectively known as King Ill) and seeks
to comply in all applicable aspects to the MFMA, as well as national Treasury regulations, as amended.
The Board comprises 13 members, who were appointed by the Shareholder, the Chris Hani District
Municipality (CHDM), who are all skilled in various disciplines, and stem from multiple background, thus
bringing an eclectic and highly skilled mix of experience and required levels of technical expertise.

The Board Charter:

The CHDA Board Charter defines the governance parameters within which the Board exists, sets out
specific responsibilities to be discharged by the Board collectively, as well as certain roles and
responsibilities incumbent upon the directors as individuals. The Board Charter further serves to ensure
that all members of the board, agency management and staff, and other stakeholders are aware of the
duties and responsibilities of the Board, as well as the basis upon which it interacts with Management in
order to give effect to its obligations to the shareholder.

The Board Charter sets out the board governance principles and parameters within which the board
operates and constitutes an integral part of setting out the composition and meeting procedures for the

Board.

Composition of the Board and its Sub-Committees:

Board
Audit and
Governance Risk AT Res.ources, Project, Finance and Investment
Committee s Remuneration and Committee (PFI)
(GC) Committee Ethics Committee
{ARC) (HRRE)

The Board is appointed by the shareholder, the Chris Hani District Municipality (CHDM), and comprises of
6 Non-Executive Directors. In determining the optimum composition of the Board, the shareholder sought
to ensure that it collectively contains the skills, experience and mix of personalities appropriate to the
strategic direction of the CHDA as necessary to secure its sound performance.
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CHDA'’s Current High-level Organisational Structure

The Board is led by an independent non-executive Chairperson who, inter alia, presides over meetings of
the Board, and who is responsible for ensuring the integrity and effectiveness of the Board governance
process. The role of the Chairperson is regarded as critical to good governance. In ensuring this role is
fulfilled, the Chairperson relies on the technical expertise of the Company Secretary.

The Chief Executive Officer (CEQO), Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and Executive Manager of Operations
(EMO) are Executive Directors of the Board.

Irrespective of a director’s special expertise or knowledge all members of the Board recognize that they are
collectively responsible to the shareholder for the performance of the CHDA. The Board's role is to
effectively represent, and promote the interests of, shareholders (CHDM) with a view to adding long-term
value to the development impact outcomes of the CHDA and the community. The board of directors' key
purpose therefore is to determine the organizational strategy, and consequently its performance, as well as
ensure adequate levels of control, where it is ensured that Management actions strategic decisions
effectively and according to the laws and applicable prescripts, and legitimate expectations of stakeholders.

During the year, the Board did all that was necessary to ensure that its role, as expressed in the Board
Charter, was fulfilled:

1) The Board acted as the focal point for, and custodian of, corporate governance by managing its
relationships with management and the shareholder

2) The Board appreciated that strategic risk, performance and sustainability are inseparable, and gave
effect to this by:

e Contributing to and approving the corporate performance plan as aligned to the corporate
strategy.

e Satisfying the strategy and operational plans do not give risks that have not been thoroughly
assessed by management.

o |dentifying key performance and risk areas and monitoring the agency’s performance against
agreed objectives (including the assessment of the evaluation of the performance of
executive management in terms of defined objectives) ensuring that the strategy will result
in sustainable outcomes.
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¢ Providing effective leadership based on an ethical foundation.

o Ensuring that the agency’s ethics are managed effectively.

e Retaining full and effective control over the agency, and monitoring Management’s
implementation of the strategic plans and financial objectives as defined by the Board.

o Defining levels of delegation of authority to Board sub-committees and management and
continually monitoring the exercise of delegated powers.

e Ensuring that a comprehensive system of policies and procedures is in place and that
appropriate governance structures exist to ensure the smooth, efficient and prudent
stewardship of the agency and its business.

e Ensuring compliance by the agency with all relevant laws and regulations, audit and
accounting principles, the approved code of conduct, and such other principles as may have
been established by the Board from time to time.

e Ensuring that the agency has an effective and independent Audit and Risk Committee and
that there is an effective risk-based system of internal audit.

e Being responsible for information Communication Technology (ICT) governance.

e Being responsible for the governance of risk and regularly reviewing and evaluating the risks
to the agency and ensuring the existence of comprehensive, appropriate internal controls to
mitigate against such risks.

o |dentifying and monitoring non-financial aspects relevant to the business of the agency

e Ensuring the integrity of the agency’s Annual Report.

¢ Evaluating the performance of the Chief Executive Officer.

e Together with the CEO evaluating the performance of the Board Secretary; and

e Reviewing and evaluating the adequacy of the Board Charter.

The board members during the 2023-2024 financial period were:

Adv. Mini, AM 01/07/2023 — 31/12/2023 Resigned* Chairperson-Board
Mr. Rambulana, R 01/07/2023-30/06/2024 Active Deputy Chairperson — Board

Mr. Mbokotho, L 01/07/2023-30/06/2024 Active Board Member

Dr. Khewu, N 01/07/2023-30/06/2024 Active Board Member
Ms. Dukuza, W 01/07/2023-30/06/2024 Active Board Member

Adv. Bleki, N 01/07/2023-30/06/2024 Active Board Member

Ms. Makapela, M 01/07/2023-30/06/2024 Active Board Member

The agency board members also serve on the respective board oversight / sub-committees, in line with
their expertise, except for the Audit and Risk Committee, which is an independent sub-committee.

Attendance for Q1 — Q4:

T QUARTER 1 QUARTER 2

31/08/2023 23/10/2023 12/12/2023
Special 02/10/2023 Special 30/11/2023 Special
NAME POSITION Board Board Board Board Board

Adv. Mini, AM Chairperson-Board Yes Yes No No No
Mr. Rambulana, R Deputy Chairperson- Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Board
Mr. Mbokotho, L Board Member Yes Yes No Yes Yes
Dr. Khewu, N Board Member No Yes Yes Yes Yes
Ms. Dukuza, W Board Member No Yes Yes Yes Yes
Adv. Bleki, N Board Member No Yes Yes No Yes
Ms. Makapela, M Board Member Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Mr. Langa, AM Audit and Risk Yes Yes No No yes
Committee

Chairperson
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T QUARTER S QUARTER 4

18/01/202 28/02/202|29/02/202 22/05/202(13/06/202
4 03/01/202 4 4 12/04/202 4
Special 4 Special | Special 4 Special
NAME POSITION Board Board Board Board Board Board

Adv. Mini, AM Chairperson- No No No No No No no
Board
Mr. Rambulana, R Deputy Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Chairperson-
Board
Mr. Mbokotho, L Board Member Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Dr. Khewu, N Board Member Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Ms. Dukuza, W Board Member Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Adv. Bleki, N Board Member Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Ms. Makapela, M  Board Member Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Mr. Langa, AM Audit and Risk Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Committee

Chairperson
Board of Sub-Committees:

The effectiveness of the Board is assured by the work of four (4) duly appointed sub-committees, which
assist the Board with its performance of tasks to comply with the principles of good governance and ensure
adequate levels of oversight over key CHDA operations:

° GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
The Governance committee is an independent advisory committee of the Board and is established to assist
CHDA board to manage governance and compliance affairs of the agency.

The committee therefore supports the board in implementing its oversight responsibility by being made up
of all sub-committee chairpersons and the Board chairperson.

Attendance for Q1 — Q4:

1 QUARTER1 QUARTER 2 QUARTER 4

14/08/2023 07/12/2023 09/04/2024 11/06/2024
NAME GOVCOM GOVCOM GOVCOM GOVCOM

Mr Ramabulana, R

Mr Mbokotho, L Yes Yes Yes Yes
Ms Dukuza, W No No Yes Yes
Mr Langa, AM Yes Yes Yes Yes

e HR, REMUNERATION and ETHICS COMMITTEE

The HR, Remuneration and Ethics committee (HRRE) assists the board in fulfilling its obligations and
oversight responsibility for human resources strategies. To this end the committee advises the board on:
o Ensuring the agency has an effective organizational structure and competitive human resource and
compensation policies and practices
o Ensuring appropriate processes are in place for selection, evaluation, compensation and
succession of senior management
o Oversight of the implementation of the agency’s performance management system, and
0 General administration issues as they affect all staff
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The committee convenes on a quarterly basis as required. The committee performed well and conducted
all the necessary reviews and approvals for the year under review.

Attendance for Q1 — Q4:

| ] QUARTER1|[ ~~  QUARTER2 | QUARTER3 | QUARTERA4 |
31/07/2023 19/10/2023 06/12/2023 27/03/2023 13/05/2024
Mr Ramabulana, R Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Dr Khewu, N Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Adv Bleki, N No Yes Yes Yes Yes
Ms Makapela, M Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

e PROJECT, FINANCE AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

The PFI committee was established to assist the board in giving effect to the obligations of the CHDA in
terms of the mandate and service level agreement (SLA) as entered into with the CHDM, or shareholder,
and provision of financial and investment oversight, and to promote service delivery and programing
performance in line with the strategy of the CHDA, as aligned to the SDBIP and IDP of the CHDM.

The committee serves to assist the board in identifying high impact strategic programmes, as well as the
programming performance of the agency in meeting its strategic objectives. This committee arose from the
amalgamation / merging of the stand-alone Projects and Investment Committee and the Finance and
Investment Committees of the board.

The key deliverable is to promote sound financial management, investment and revenue generation in
support of agency mandate. The committee convenes on a quarterly basis as required. The committee

performed well and conducted all the necessary reviews and approvals for the year under review.

Attendance for Q1 — Q4:

I QUARTER 1 QUARTER? QUARTER 3 QUARTER 4

31/08/2023 17/01/2024 14/05/2024
26/07/2023 |Joint 27/11/2023 |[Special 26/03/2024 | 06/05/2024 Joint
NAME PFI ARC/PFEI PFI ARC/PFEI PFI PFI ARC/PFEI

Mr Ramabulana, R Yes No Yes Yes No No no
Mr Mbokotho, L Yes No Yes Yes Yes Yes No
Dr Khewu, N Yes No Yes Yes Yes Yes no
Ms Makapela, M No No Yes Yes Yes Yes no
Mr Langa, AM No Yes No Yes No No Yes
Prof Plaatjes, WA  No Yes No Yes No No Yes
Mr Mbenenge, MM No Yes No No No No Yes
Ms Klassen, Z No No No Yes No No Yes

e AUDIT, RISK AND ETHICS COMMITTEE

The audit, risk and ethics (ARC) committee is an independent advisory committee of the Board and is
established to assist CHDA board to manage risk and financial affairs of the agency. The committee
therefore supports the board in implementing its oversight responsibility by overseeing and reporting to the
board on:

o The quality and integrity of the agency’s Annual Financial Statements and Performance Report
Compliance with regulatory, legal and tax requirements
Implementation of accounting policies
Overall risk management
Independent auditors’ opinions and measures for improvement, and
The performance of the internal audit function and systems of internal control

O O 0O 0o
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The committee convenes on a quarterly basis as required. The committee performed well and conducted
all the necessary reviews and approvals for the year under review.

The committee members during the 2023-2024 financial period were:

Mr Langa, AM 01/07/2023-30/06/2024 Active Audit and Risk Committee Chairperson
Prof Plaatjes, WA 01/07/2023-30/06/2024 Active Audit and Risk Committee member
Mr Madolo, Y 01/07/2023-30/06/2024 Active Audit and Risk Committee member
Mr Mbenenge, MM 01/07/2023-30/06/2024 Active Audit and Risk Committee member
Ms Klassen, Z 01/07/2023-30/06/2024 Active Audit and Risk Committee member

The agency audit and risk committee members also serve on the shareholder’s Audit and Risk Committee.
The agency also shares a municipal disciplinary (DC) board with the shareholder, in line with applicable
legislation on dealing with issues of financial misconduct.

Attendance for Q1 — Q4:

_ QUARTER 1 QUARTER 2 QUARTER 3 QUARTER4

31/08/202 17/01/202
27/03/202 | 14/05/2024
Special Joint
NAME ARC/PFI ARC/PFI
Mr Ramabulana,
R No No No No No Yes No no
Mr Mbokotho, L Yes Yes No No Yes Yes No No
Dr Khewu, N No No No No No Yes No no
Ms Makapela, M No No No No No Yes No no
Mr Langa, AM Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Prof Plaatjes, WA Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Mr Madolo, Y Yes Yes No Yes Yes No Yes No
Mr Mbenenge,
MM Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes Yes
Ms Klassen, Z Yes Yes No Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Board and Committee Member Remuneration:

The composition of the Board reflects a variety of skills and experience that are required to govern the
CHDA and provides the much-needed strategic direction to take the entity to the next level. Amongst these
skills are Accounting, Auditing and Municipal and Development Finance, Strategy, Human Resources
Management, Agricultural Economics, Economic Development, Performance Management and Risk
Management.

Some of the members have to take time from their own private practices and full — time employment in key
positions, in order to support the agency, and this comes at a cost that cannot easily be matched at times.
Failure to recognize this fact through narrowing the gap between revenue streams might compromise the
quality of Board members that the CHDA can attract. The Board thus comprises of highly committed
members who can engage meaningfully with the activities of the agency at a strategic level and provide the
necessary guidance to management.
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Remuneration made to Board members during the period 2023-2024 was as follows:

2024

Ms. W Dukuza (Interim Board Chairperson)
Adv. AM Mini (Board Chairperson)

Dr. ND Khewu

Mr. L Mbokotho

Mr. TR Ramabulana (Deputy Board Chairperson)
Ms M Makapela

Prof. WA Plaatjes™

Ms Z Manxilana-Klassen™

Mr.Y Madolo™

Mr M. M Mbenenge™

Mr. AM Langa™™ ( Audit Committee Chairperson)
Adv. N Bleki

2023

Ms. W Dukuza (Interim Board Chairperson)
Adv, AM Mini (Board Chairperson)

Dr. ND Khewu

Mr. AA Hala®

Mr. L Mbokotho

Mr. TR Ramabulana (Deputy Board Chairperson)
Ms. B Zantsi

Ms. Z Kiviet

Ms. A Kretzmann**

Prof. WA Plaatjes™

Mr. MM Mbenenge™*

Mr. G Rich™

Mr. MK Mafani**

Adv. N Bleki

Ms. Z Manxilana-Klassen**

Mr. AM Langa* ( Audit Committee Chairperson)
Ms. M Makapela

Mr. Y Madolo**

** Audit Committee Members

Board Evaluation and Performance:

Directors' fees Committees Total
fees
102 000 - 102 000
19 500 - 19 500
150 000 - 150 000
176 250 - 176 250
206 500 - 206 500
132 000 - 132 000
- 59 000 59 000
- 53 000 53000
- 60 000 60 000
- 10 000 10 000
- 222 000 222 000
98 000 - 98 000
884 250 404 000 1 288 250
Directors' fees Commitiees Total
fees

15 000 - 15 000
136 329 - 136 329
162 000 - 162 000
420 911 - 420 911
143 663 - 143 663
172 330 - 172 330
30 000 - 30 000
47 000 - 47 000
- 10 000 10 000

- 32 000 32 000

- 30 000 30 000

- 18 000 19 000

- 19 000 19 000

- 30 000 30 000

- 180 663 180 663

65 000 - B85 000
- 35000 35 000

1192 233 355 663 1 547 896

Although individual board members are appointed on a 3-year term, performance evaluations of the board
as a whole and of individual members are conducted on an annual basis.

The Interim Chairman of the Board appraises the shareholder on the performance of the Board and its
individual members annually, and the efforts of the Board are reviewed by the shareholder.
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Executive Management:

During the year 2023-2024, the CHDA was managed by the 3 executive members:

Mr Abongile Hala - Chief Executive Officer
Ms Flicker Tiso - Chief Financial Officer (appointed December 2023)
Ms Nomveliso Nyukwana - Executive Manager Operations

Remuneration made to Exco members during the period 2023-2024 is as follows:

Remuneration of Chief Executive Officer

Annual Remuneration including social contribution
Acting Allowances

Backpay and Salary adjustments

Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds

Remuneration of Chief Finance Officer

Annual Remuneration including social contribution
Acting Allowances

Backpay and Salary adjustments

Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds

Remuneration of Executive Manager Operations
Annual Remuneration including social contribution

Backpay and Salary adjustments
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds

CHRIS HANI DEVELOPMENT

1875 461 312577
- 420 911
49700 -
1785 -
1926 946 733 488
1260 429 -
43920 87 840
10 606 -
125298 -
1440 253 87 840
1236780 1232 968
25702 -
98 775 103 441
1361 257 1336 409
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PART 6: CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT

After my appointment as the incoming CEO in the prior year,
the parent municipality had given CHDA a monumental task
unlock the economic potential of the region through
investment facilitation for corridor development and this was
not an easy task but the Agency is more than equal to the
challenges that came its way. As we strive to be better the
agency regressed in its perfomance of 56% in the current
year of 2023-2024, compared to 70% in the prior year.

Over and above performance, the agency also improved in
its ability to manage financial resources, showing
improvements in cost-containment measures, revenue
collection and budgetary control. With this remarkable team
we strive to turn around the tide. With the four pogrammes
that talk to the achivement of our mission and vision
MR. ABONGILE HALA translated to strategic programmes, the below gives
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER highlight.

Chris Hani Development Agency
30 November 2024

Programme 1: Creation of a Viable and Proficient Organisation
Designed the institution in such a way that it is efficient, effective, with good performance and is compliant.
(Inward looking)

The agency fought to meet its performance commitments on own revenue generation and funding
mobilization, to enable it to reduce its reliance on operational grant income from the parent municipality,
thus emphasising the need to develop a clear funding mobilisation plan, grant dependency reduction plan.

The agency oversight and governance structures played their part well, and for this | am eternally grateful.
They were able to provide startegic direction and leadership, and support the efforts of management
throughout the financial year. Through the Company Secretariat, improvements in managing the annual
board and committee calendar, to ensure that sittings and reports were presented to oversight committees
and the board.

The role of internal audit in agency risk management and audit readiness also cannot be down-played in
holding internal audit accountable for their performance cannot be measured.

Programme 2: Funding Mobilisation and Investment Promotion
Focus is given to the mobilisation of resourced and securing Investors for the purpose of achieving
Investment. (Outward looking)

The agency met its target above expectation. With commitments and funding Memorandum of Agreements
MOA'’s signed in the following:

Fertlizer Blending Plant - PIM

Renewable Energy Investment Commitment

NDA between CHDA and SE Holdings (Fresh Produce Pack House - Operator)
Letter of Intent from African Seeds Group

Signed Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), with Evergrow and ECDC

Signed Investor Commitment with Three Investors in China (Linfen City)
Co-Hosting of His Excellency, Ambassador in the Republic of Cairo and Evergrow

AR N N NN
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It must be noted that the rand value targets to secured off-takes were as follows:
v" Fresh Produce Pack House - Off-Take Agreement with Operator of value of R118m

With the aim to follow through on the above into implementable investments
Programme 3: Creation of Economically Viable and Sustainable Rural Corridors

This programme talks about corridor development, with an emphasis on cropping programmes, livestock
improvement, Agri-processing, skills development, job creation and planning work.

The agency continued its work on supporting various cropping initiatives through its mechanization support
function, which enables local emerging farmers access tractors and farming equipment and services at
marginal prices, allowing them to be competitive through reductions in production costs. The center is faced
with budget challenges, and a state of fleet dis-repair, which has necessitated the need to re-evaluate the
existing business model in the upcoming financial year.

The career seminar and youth engagement sessions towards promotion of critical skills also continued.
This included ongoing career guidance to high school learners through the career seminar programme, as
well as various Seta-funded initiatives ranging from learnerships, apprenticeships and internships.

Programme 4: Infrastructure Implementation Support

The CHDA signed a service level agreement with the parent municipality in December 2020, to act as
implementing agent for key water projects being implemented as part of the service delivery backlog of the
CHDM. This Service Level Agreement ended in December 2023 with all mandated projects completed by
CHDA and a final handover progress report underway.

The agency plans to continue with this programme in undertaking economic infrastructure development
support through:

Komani Industrial Park

Rail Infrastructure Assessment report

Irrigation Infrastructure Assessment report

Farm Unit water use license application submitted
Renewable Energy Infrastructure Support

ANENENENEN

The agency commits to implementing the above to bring about infrastructure development in our District.

MR. ABONGILE HALA
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
30 November 2024
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PART 7: REPORT BY THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE
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PART 8: REPORT BY THE COMPANY SECRETARY

William Radcliffe confirms its role as Company Secretary to the Chris Hani Development Agency (CHDA)
for the period ended 30 June 2024. As per section 88(2)(e) of the Companies Act 71 of 2008, a company
secretary is required to certify whether the company has filed required returns and notices in terms of the
Companies Act, and whether all such returns and notices appear to be true, correct, and up to date. The
filing which took place in the period includes:

a) Lodgement of annual return with Companies and Intellectual Property Commission (CIPC).
b) Update of executive and non-executive directors with CIPC, as well as update of company secretariat
and registered office.

William Radcliffe hereby confirms, in its capacity as Company Secretary of the Chris Hani Development
Agency (CHDA), that for the financial year 2023-2024, that the company, Chris Hani Development Agency
SOC Ltd, complied in terms of the Companies Act with regards to governance and filing of the necessary
lodgements and disclosures.

William Radcliffe hereby confirms, in its role as Company Secretary of the CHDA, is extended to provision
of the Company Secretary services for the Board of Directors and sub-committees, and we were thus
responsible for documenting all critical discussions, resolutions and providing required support.

RILAPAX T/S WILLIAM RADCLIFFE
COMPANY SECRETARY

Chris Hani Development Agency

30 November 2024

CHRIS HANI DEVELOPMENT ANNUAL REPORT 30 JUNE 2024



CHRIS HANI DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

DRAFT ANNUAL REPORT 30 JUNE 2024

o
=
=
S
o
=
o
=
o
o
c
©
o}
S
o
o
O]
|
-
S
IS
o
©
=
5
0
S
°
=
I=
I
S
o
X
o
S
=
=
g
o




PART 9: REPORT BY THE EXTERNAL AUDITOR

Report of the auditor-general to the Eastern Cape Provincial Legislature and Council on Chris Hani
Development Agency (SOC Limited)

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Qualified opinion

1. I have audited the financial statements of the Chris Hani Development Agency (SOC Limited) as set out
below, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2024, statement of financial
performance, statement of changes in net assets, cash flow statement and statement of comparison of
budget and actual amounts for the year then ended, as well as notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

2. In my opinion, except for the effects of the matters described in the basis for qualified opinion section of
this auditors report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Chris Hani Development Agency (SOC Limited) as at 30 June 2024 and its financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting
Practice (GRAP) and the requirements of the Municipal Finance Management Act 56 of 2003 (MFMA).

Basis for qualified opinion

Cash flow statement

3. The municipality did not recognise the cash and cash equivalents as required by GRAP 2, Cash flow
statements. There are amounts in the cash flow statement that could not be substantiated with supporting
evidence. Consequently, | was unable to determine whether any adjustments were necessary to the cash
and cash equivalents at end of the year disclosed at R2.8 million (2023: R 14.3 million) in the cashflow
statement.

Context for opinion

4. | conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). My
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the responsibilities of the auditor-general for
the audit of the financial statements section of my report.

5. I am independent of the municipal entity in accordance with the International Ethics Standards

Board for Accountants' International code of ethics for professional accountants (including International
Independence Standards) (IESBA code) as well as other ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit
in South Africa. | have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the IESBA code.

6. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
qualified opinion.

Material uncertainty relating to going concern

7. | draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

8. Asdisclosed in note 37 to the financial statements, the agency had an accumulated deficit of R2,8 million
and has been incurring losses for the past two consecutive years. There are challenges with the
settlement of liabilities due to the uncertainty related to receivables. Furthermore, the principal agent
agreement on infrastructure implementation has not been renewed. These events or conditions, along
with the other matters as set forth in note 37, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt on the agency's ability to continue as a going concern.
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Emphasis of matter
9. | draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Restatement of corresponding figures

10. As disclosed in note 35 to the financial statements, the corresponding figures for 30 June 2023 have
been restated as a result of errors identified in the financial statements of the municipal entity at, and for
the year ended 30 June 2024.

Other matter
11. | draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Unaudited disclosure notes

12. In terms of section 125(2)(e) of the MFMA, the particulars of non-compliance with the MFMA should be
disclosed in the financial statements. This disclosure requirement did not form part of the audit of the
financial statements and accordingly we do not express an opinion on them.

Responsibilities of the accounting officer for the financial statements

13. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with the Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) and the requirements of the
Municipal Finance Management Act 56 of 2003 (MFMA); and for such internal control as the accounting
officer determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

14. In preparing the financial statements, the accounting officer is responsible for assessing the municipal
entity's ability to continue as a going concern; disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern;
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the appropriate governance structure either intends
to liquidate the municipal entity or to cease operations or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Responsibilities of the auditor-general for the audit of the financial statements

15. My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and to issue an auditor's report that
includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with the ISAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

16. A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is included in the
annexure to this auditor's report.

Report on the annual performance report

17. In accordance with the Public Audit Act 25 of 2004 (PAA) and the general notice issued in terms
thereof, | must audit and report on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance against
predetermined objectives for the selected programme presented in the annual performance report.
The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation of the annual performance report.

18. | selected the following indicators presented in the annual performance report for the year ended 30
June 2024 for auditing. | selected indicators that measure the municipal entity's performance on its
primary mandated functions and that is of significant national, community or public interest.

e No of planning documents developed

e No of local enterprises capacitated
e No of research and technical studies completed to identify high impact development projects
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e No of development partnerships driving LED projects

e No of jobs and work opportunities facilitated for Chris Hani District residents and unemployed
critical skills graduates

e No of waste programmes implemented

e No of local geoprocessing commercial activities enterprises established

19. | evaluated the reported performance information for the selected indicators against the criteria
developed from the performance management and reporting framework, as defined in the general
notice. When an annual performance report is prepared using these criteria, it provides useful and
reliable information and insights to users on the municipal entity's planning and delivery on its mandate
and objectives.

20. | performed procedures to test whether:

¢ the indicators used for planning and reporting on performance can be linked directly to the
municipal entity's mandate and the achievement of its planned objectives

o all the indicators relevant for measuring the municipal entity’s performance against its primary
mandated and prioritised functions and planned objectives are included

¢ the indicators are well defined to ensure that they are easy to understand and can be applied
consistently, as well as verifiable so that | can confirm the methods and processes to be used for
measuring achievements

¢ the targets can be linked directly to the achievement of the indicators and are specific, time bound
and measurable to ensure that it is easy to understand what should be delivered and by when,
the required level of performance as well as how performance will be evaluated

¢ the indicators and targets reported on in the annual performance report are the same as those
committed to in the approved initial or revised planning documents

o the reported performance information is presented in the annual performance report in the
prescribed manner

o there is adequate supporting evidence for the achievements reported measures taken to improve
performance

21. | performed the procedures to report material findings only and not to express an assurance opinion
or conclusion

22. The material finding on the reported performance information for the selected material indicator is as
follows:
No of local agri- processing commercial enterprises established

23.The planned annual target 3.6.2 (Facilitate the support for commercial production in the irrigation
schemes) is not measurable as it is not well defined and verifiable.

Other matters
24. | draw attention to the matters below.

Achievement of planned targets

24.The annual performance report includes information on reported achievements against planned targets
and provides explanations for underachievement’s. This information should be considered in the context
of the material finding on the reported performance information.

25.The table that follows provides information on the achievement of planned targets and lists of the key
service delivery indicators that were not achieved as reported in the annual performance report. The
reasons for any underachievement of targets are included in the annual performance report on pages
43 to 69.
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Service delivery indicators not achieved

Targets achieved: 53% Budget spent: 90%

Key service delivery indicator not achieved

Planned target Reported achievement

No of local enterprises capacitated

> 15 local SME's participated

in business incubation and
business  training  support
programmes

> 1 1 local SME's participated in

business incubation and
business training support
programmes

No of research and technical studies conducted to
identify high impact sustainable projects

3 studies completed on Agri-
processing

Nil studies completed on Agri-
processing

No of development partnerships driving LED

projects

1 partnership established for
establishment of envisaged
ICT Digital Hub

Nil partnership established for|
envisaged ICT Digital Hub

1 partnership  established
towards fruit production

Nil  partnership  established
towards fruit production

No of jobs and work opportunities facilitated for
Chris Hani District residents and unemployed critical

skills graduates

100 jobs or work opportunities
from agency industrial park
activities

18 jobs or work opportunities
recorded from agency industrial
park activities

10 youth in CHDA hosted work
placement programme

5 youth in CHDA hosted work
placement programme

20 work opportunities in
irrigation scheme principal-
agent agreement with DRDAR

19 work opportunities in irrigation
scheme principal agent
agreement with DRDAR

No of waste programmes implemented 1 waste enterprise . . .
. . Nil waste enterprise resuscitated
resuscitated active to . -
L active to commercialise 3 waste
commercialise 3 waste ers
s facilities
facilities

No of local agri-processing commercial enterprises 1 fresh produce packhouse Nil fresh produce packhouse
established established established

Material misstatement

27. | identified a material misstatement in the annual performance report submitted for auditing. This
material misstatement was in the reported performance information for programme 3. Management did not
correct the misstatement and | reported a material finding in this regard.

Report on compliance with legislation

28. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, | must audit and report
on compliance with applicable legislation relating to financial matters, financial management, and other
related matters. The accounting officer is responsible for the municipal entity's compliance with legislation.

29. | performed procedures to test compliance with selected requirements in key legislation in
accordance with the findings engagement methodology of the Auditor-General of South Africa (AGSA). This
engagement is not an assurance engagement. Accordingly, | do not express an assurance opinion or
conclusion.

30. Through an established AGSA process, | selected requirements in key legislation for compliance
testing that are relevant to the financial and performance management of the municipal entity, clear to allow
consistent measurement and evaluation, while also sufficiently detailed and readily available to report in an
understandable manner. The selected legislative requirements are included in the annexure to this auditor's
report.

31. The material findings on compliance with the selected legislative requirements, presented per
compliance theme, are as follows:
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Annual Financial Statements, Annual Performance Report, and Annual Report

32. The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in all material respects in
accordance with the requirements of section 122(1) of the MFMA. Material misstatements of non-current
assets, current assets, liabilities and expenditure items identified by the auditors in the submitted financial
statements were subsequently corrected, but the uncorrected material misstatements resulted in the
financial statements receiving a qualified audit opinion.

Expenditure management

33. Reasonable steps were not taken to prevent fruitless and wasteful expenditure amounting to R477 776
as disclosed in note 38 to the annual financial statements, as required by section 95(d) of the MFMA.
Consequences management

34, Irregular expenditure incurred by the municipal entity were not investigated to determine if any
person is liable for the expenditure, as required by municipal budget and reporting regulations 75(1).

35. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure incurred by the municipal entity was not investigated to
determine if any person is liable for the expenditure, as required by municipal budget and reporting
regulations 75(1).

Other information in the annual report

36. The accounting officer is responsible for the other information included in the annual report, which
includes the directors' report, the audit committee's report, and the company secretary's certificate, as
required by the Companies Act. The other information referred to does not include the financial statements,
the auditor's report, and the selected programme presented in the annual performance report that have
been specifically reported on in this auditor's report.

37. My opinion on the financial statements, the report on the audit of the annual performance report,
and the report on compliance with legislation do not cover the other information included in the annual
report and | do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion on it.

38. My responsibility is to read this other information and, in doing so, consider whether it is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements and the selected programme presented in the annual
performance report or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

39. | did not receive the other information prior to the date of this auditor's report. When | do receive
and read this information, if | conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, | am required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance and request that the other information be
corrected. If the other information is not corrected, | may have to retract this auditor's report and re-issue
an amended report as appropriate. However, if it is corrected this will not be necessary.

Internal control deficiencies

40. | considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, annual performance
report and compliance with applicable legislation; however, my objective was not to express any form of
assurance on it.
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41. The matters reported below are limited to the significant internal control deficiencies that resulted in the
basis for the qualified opinion and the material findings on compliance with legislation included in this report.

® Regular, accurate and complete financial information that are supported and evidenced by reliable
information.

® |nadequate review and monitoring of financial information.

e |Insufficient allocation of responsibilities within the finance department to facilitate adequate
oversight of function.

East London
30 November 2024
S,
-~ -

L)

A UDITOR-GENERAL
S OUTH AFRICA
Auditing to build public confidence
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Annexure to the auditor's report

The annexure includes the following:
® The auditor-general's responsibility for the audit
® The selected legislative requirements for compliance testing

Auditor-general's responsibility for the audit
Professional judgement and professional scepticism

As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, | exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout my audit of the financial statements and the procedures performed on reported
performance information for selected material performance indicators and on the municipal entity's
compliance with selected requirements in key legislation.

Financial statements

In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the financial statements as described in this auditor's report,
| also:

¢ identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error; design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks; and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override
of internal control.

e obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the municipal entity's internal control.

e evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made.

e conclude on the appropriateness of the use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements. | also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the ability of the municipal entity to continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in my auditor's report to the related disclosures
in the financial statements about the material uncertainty or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify my opinion on the financial statements. My conclusions are based on the information
available to me at the date of this auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause
a municipal entity to cease operating as a going concern.

e evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and determine whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Communication with those charged with governance

I communicate with the accounting officer regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that |
identify during my audit.

| also provide the accounting officer with a statement that | have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated to those charged

with governance, | determine those matters that were of

most significance in the audit of the financial statements for the current period and are therefore key audit
matters. | describe these matters in this auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, | determine that a matter should not be

communicated in this auditor's report because the

adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be

expected to outweigh the public interest of such communication.

COMPLIANCE WITH LEGISLATION — SELECTED LEGISLATIVE REQUIREMENTS

The selected legislative requirements are as follows:

Legislation

Municipal Finance Management Act 56 of 2003

Sections or regulations

Section 1 - Paragraph (a), (b) & (d) of the definition. irregular

expenditure,

Sections 87(5)(b). 87(5)(d), 87(5)(d)(i), 87(5)(d)(iii),
Sections 87(8), 95(d),
Sections 36(2)(a), 96(2)(b). 97(e), 97(f), 97(h), 970),
Sections 99(2)(b), 99(2)(c), 99(2)(qg),

102(2)(a), 112(1)(), 102(1),

Sections 1 1 6 ( 2 )
(b), 116(2)(c)(ii), 122(1),

133(1a

Sections 133(1 170,

MFMA: Municipal Budget and Reporting Regulations,
2009

Regulations 73(1), 73(2), 75(1), 75(2)

MFMA: Municipal Investment Regulations, 2005

Regulations 3(2), 3(3), 5(4), 6, 7, 10(1), 12(2), 12(3)

MFMA: Municipal Regulations on Financial
Misconduct Procedures and Criminal
Proceedings, 2014

Regulations 5(4), 10(1)

MFMA: Municipal Supply Chain Management
Regulations, 2005

Regulations 5,  12(3), 13(b), 13(c),
16(a),
Regulations 19(a), 21 (b),

Regulations 22(2), 28(1 .
28(1

Regulations

29(5)(b)(ii}, 32,

Regulations 36(1), 36(1  38(1 ¢ 38(1 1
Regulations 38(1 38(1 | ) .43,
44,

Regulations

Municipal Systems Act 32 of 2000

Sections 93B(a), 93C(a)(1v), 93J(1)

Construction Industry Development Board Act 38 of
2000

Section 18(1)

Construction Industry Development Board Regulations,
2004

Regulations 17, 25(7A)
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Legislation Sections or regulations

Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act | Sections 2(1)(a), 2(1)(f)
5 of 2000

Preferential Procurement Regulations, 2017 Regulations 4(1), 4(2), 5(1), 5(3), 5(6), 5
6(2), 6(3), 6(6), Regulations 6(8), 7(1), 7

7(6), 7(8), 8(2), 8(5), 9(1),

Regulations 10(1), 10(2), 1 1(1), 1 1 (2)

—_
N

Preferential Procurement Regulations, 2022 Regulations 4(1), 4(2), 4(3), 4(4), 5(1), 5(2), 5(3), 5(4)

Prevention and Combating of Corrupt Activities | Section 34(1)
Act 12 of 2004

Companies Act 71 of 2008 Sections  45(2), 45(3)(a)(ii), 45(3)(b)(i). 45(3)(b)(ii),

45(4)
Sections
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PART 10: ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT

Chris Hani Development Agency (SOC) Limited

(Registration number 2012/033437/30)

Annual Performance Report for the year ended 30 June 2024
Directors' Responsibilities and Approval

The directors are required by the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act 56 of 2003), to maintain
adequate performance records and are responsible for the content and integrity of the annual performance
report (APR) and related supporting portfolio of evidence (POE) towards realised pre-determined
objectives.

Therefore:

It is the responsibility of the directors to ensure that the annual performance report (APR) fairly
represents the performance against predetermined objectives of the entity as at the end of the
financial year

The directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal control
and reporting established by the entity and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong
control environment that supports the realisation of predetermined objectives, and supports
adequate, accurate and reliable reporting on predetermined objectives

The directors have reviewed the entity’s annual performance report (APR) for the year starting 1
July 2023 to 30 June 2024 and, in the light of this review, approve the submission of the attached
report, with the additional submission of the approved supporting portfolio of evidence (POE) as a
means of verification of reported achievements for the period

The annual performance report information has been set out on the following pages, and was

approved by the directors in a meeting held on the 31 August 2024 and were thus signed on their
behalf by:

Mr. AA Hala Welekazi Dukuza
Chief Executive Officer Interim-Chairperson of the Board
31 August 2024 31 August 2024
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INTRODUCTION:

The agency’s strategic objectives are aligned to the parent municipality’s IDP objectives, and the approved
operational mandate issued by the shareholder. These have been secured in a Service Level Agreement
(SLA) between the agency and the Chris Hani District Municipality (CHDM) for the year 2023-2024 and
have served the basis of structuring the agency’s Annual Performance Plan (APP) for the year.

These overarching strategic objectives, or programmes are:

1) To develop a proficient, viable and self-sustainable entity by 2028

2) To mobilise funding and facilitate investment promotion into the district by 2028

3) To develop economically viable and sustainable rural corridors by 2028

4) To support implementation of enabling infrastructure projects in the district by 2028

The annual performance report will provide an assessment of the agency’s performance in the period
starting 1 July 2023 to 30 June 2024, against these identified strategic programmes, and reflect in depth on
areas of non-performance.

SUMMARY ORGANIZATIONAL PERFORMANCE - ANNUAL FOR 2023-2024:

The agency’s assessed performance for the period 1 July 2023 to 30 June 2024, is as follows:
Achieved: 53.33% (100% or greater completion of planned outputs due by end June 2024)
Partially achieved: 6.67% (70 — 99% completion of planned outputs due by end June 2024)

NOHECHEVEEIEE (Ioss than 70% completion of planned outputs due by end June 2024)

The recorded performance is a regression from the previous financial year, which closed at 70% level of
performance achievement, which is an indication of inconsistence into Agencies performance and its
momentum in recovery from performance challenges of the past years.

SUMMARY OF APP PROGRESS PER STRATEGIC PROGRAMME_ 30 JUNE 2024 Prior period
comparative

Part Not Calculated Regression in
Exceeded Achieved Achieved Achievement organisation
Achieved Perf 75% - 0% - by performance from
ANNUAL _ 2022-2023 No 100% Metric 99.9% <75% Programme prior periods:
Prog1 - Viable O 21.00 1000  1.00 100 1000  48% =2024(56%)
g iable Org o
2023 (70/o
I O -
_2021 (42%
Prog3 - Viable Rural Econ - 19.00 9.0 47% _2020 (71%)
Dev Corridors _2019 (70%)
Progd - Infastructure CHDM 200 200 100 000 000  10000% 5072175
_2017 (60%)
45.00 24.00 3.00 18.00 REGRESSION IN
2023/2024 TO
53%
53.33% 6.67%  40.00% 100.00%
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The fluctuations in performance over the years can be summarised at a high level per the synopsis provided

below:

Period Reported Variance Items Achieved|Part Not
Performance Achleved Achleved

30 June 2017

30 June 2018
30 June 2019
30 June 2020

30 June 2021

30 June 2022

30 June 2023

30 June 2024

60%

76%
70%
71%

42%

54%

70%

53%

73
I33
+12% 54
+16% 61

31
30
52

14

29

43

15

21

16

I45 24 3 18

CHRIS HANI DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

The agency did not have an
established performance
management and reporting system
in place, and various internal control
weaknesses identified affecting
performance reporting as this item
was at infancy stages. This is also
the year in-progress items were
included in the performance rating,
to adopt a more conservative
assessment of performance

The agency was able to perform
well due to setting of activity-based
outputs at APP level mainly, hence
the number of deliverables. This
was found later to be a possible
challenge, where  focus on
7outcome-based indicators was
implemented to better support the
mandate/ strategy being
implemented

The performance was negatively
affected by a +-50% budget cut
and financial challenges where key
indicators and objectives were not
funded with allocation received.
This led to agency declaring a
financial crisis with the board and
parent municipality, and the
subsequent development of a
financial turnaround plan, revenue
enhancement plan and cost-
containment strategy

The performance was negatively
affected by the late approval of the
APP and changes in the
management environment, coupled
with exits of key personnel

There is a notable improvement in
current reporting period, due to
improvement in development of
indicators, enhanced collation of
POE information

The performance was negatively
affected by the budget constraints
to implement LED Projects, as the
Infrastructure Projects was not
renewed on December 2023, which
has serious implications towards
operation. The implementation of
the Financial Turn Around, became
critical.
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[The variance indicates the nett movement in the reported performance from one year to the next- red
indicates a decline in performance/ regression, and green indicates an improvement]

In compiling the performance figures, the organizational performance was reviewed against the individual
performance by programme, across each of the 4 key programmes in 2023-2024. The performance by
programme can be summarized as follows:

1) To develop a proficient, viable and self-sustainable entity by 2028

2) To mobilise funding and facilitate investment promotion into the district by 2028

3) To develop economically viable and sustainable rural corridors by 2028

4) To support implementation of enabling infrastructure projects in the district by 2028

SUMMARY ANNUAL CONSOLIDATED PERFORMANCE as at 30JUNE2024 - provisional

Targets for the

period Achieved Part Achieved
Strategic Programme 2023-2024 100% or > 70% - 99% %
PROG1 |[To Develop a Proficient, 21 10.00 1.00 48%

Viable and Self — Sustainable
Entity by 2028

PROG2 To Mobilise Funding and 3 3 (0]
Facilitate Investment
Promotion into the District by
2028

PROG3 Facilitation of Economic 19 9 2
Development in District Rural
Corridors by 2028

PROG4 To Support Economic 2 2 (0]
Development Infrastructure
Development by 2028

Total: 45 24.00 3.00

100%

C41%

~ 100%

53%

53.33% 6.67%

Figure 2 _ Detailed Organisational Performance by Strategic Programme - Tabular_ 2022-2023

The detail above has been summarized below:

Strategic Programme Achieved Part Achieved
To Develop a Proficient, Viable and Self — Sustainable 48% 5%
Entity by 2028

To Mobilise Funding and Facilitate Investment 100% 0%
Promotion into the District by 2028

Facilitation of Economic Development in District Rural 47% 11%
Corridors by 2028

To Support Economic Development Infrastructure 100% 0%
Development by 2028

Figure 3 _ Comparative Organisation Performance by Strategic Programme - Graphical _ 2023-2024
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The charts above indicate the status of key output deliverables as at 30 June 2024. A detailed look at these
figures is explained below:

A total of 24 deliverables of the 45 (53.33%) identified for the year have been achieved within 100%
of the annual target or above the required performance metric

A total of 3 deliverables of the 45 (6.67%) identified for the year have been partially achieved to
within 70-99.99% of the annual target

In closing, a total of 18 deliverables of the 45 (40.00%) identified for the year have not been
achieved, as they have fallen within 0 -70.99% of the annual target. This shows a prudent outlook
on reporting of performance achievement, so as not to possible over-inflate reported level of
performance which may later have to be restated down.

These performance figures were achieved with the agency spending within its approved budget for the
2023-2024 financial year:

A lot of reliance was made on cost-containment strategies to minimize spending under administration
and general expenditure to incur savings which could be re-allocated to other areas needing the
additional resources. There is still a need to enhance this strategy into the new financial year, with
stricter control on cost-containment being necessary for the agency’s full recovery against its
approved financial and sustainability turnaround plans.

There was a high reliance on agency fees generated to assist with funding unfunded LED programs
that allowed movement in key operational targets under programmes 2 and 3 but has not been
renewed. Some project expenditure was allocated against unpent rollover grant funds from prior
period, and additional allocations received in-year to cover grant-funded LED programs.

The reliance on agency fees to cover unfunded service delivery commitments remains a challenge,
as it affected the ability to build cash reserves, where sizable bank interest could be earned. The
budget allocation ringfenced for LED internally funded programs could also have been utilized to fund
the servicing of SARS debt in-year, which could have improved agency tax compliance status at
year-end.

Despite these challenges, the multi-year income tax and employees tax debt was in progress, with
remaining balances being under the value-added tax account, arising from prior periods AGSA
related findings on VAT charged on operational grants and subsidies.

The agency still has a high cost-of employment ratio, well above the 30-40% NT budgeting norms.
Plans are in place to review the internal policies on recruitment, develop a comprehensive HR
strategy to ensure the resourcing of the agency key service delivery areas with required critical skills
and resources that can drive the implementation of the strategy. This also includes a comprehensive
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salary benchmarking project that has commenced in the year, to ensure that agency employees are
remunerated fairly, and in line with the market.

- An organogram has been developed as part of the new agency strategy for the upcoming 5-year
business planning period, indicating key priority positions to be filled in the short to medium term
which will address the resourcing of key skills and competencies to improve the audit outcomes of
the agency.

- The Agency over-achieved Program two, as compared from previous years, due to smart partnership
with Provincial Government and its Agencies and being innovative towards Investment Promotion
and Facilitation.

- Towards implementation of the Financial Turn Around Plan, the Agency managed to reduce its Board
composition to 7-Non-Executive Directors.

- However there has been overspend due to Special Board and Committee during the year under
review. The Board took a decision to manage these sittings, only the Interim Board Chair, must

approved any Special Sitting.

The next part of the report will indicate in detail areas of notable achievement, and areas of non-
achievement for 2023-2024, within each of the programmes’ key areas of focus.
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CONCLUDING REMARKS

The key areas of non-performance up to the end of June 2024 are due to areas within the CHDA'’s area of
control, and outside of its control:

Non-Performance Issues Within Agency’s Area of Direct Control

1) Improvement in own fundraising for Agency to consider:
development programmes - Building internal skills associated with programme conceptualization,
implementation feasibility analysis, business planning and funding applications to help
reduce reliance on handed-over projects, and non-receipt of promised
funds. This will help build a solid project pipeline, as well as create project
autonomy, and alternative sources of programme implementation funds
- In 2023-2024, this was attempted through the technical studies focus
on development of key planning documents to guide LED programmes
planning and fundraising efforts
- Identification of new innovative revenue sources to build agency
reserves to accumulate surplus and emergency funds
2) Investment in skills and capacity of Agency to invest more in:
implementing resources with - Attracting and recruiting the right candidates with the right set of skills,
alignment to institutional strategy which are needed for building distinct competencies and build
organizational strengths
- Training and development for implementation staff, to ensure that
those who drive programmes are well-equipped with technical, financial,
and project-management capabilities
- Addressing high vacancy rate in the organization, through priority HR
recruitment and selection to ensure crucial vacancies are filled
- Finalization of planned skills audit and salary benchmarking exercises
as part of attraction and retention and business turnaround strategies
3) Improvement in monitoring and Agency to consider:
evaluation processes - Allocating the responsibility of a strategic manager / performance officer or
senior operations to a single individual on a full-time basis to ensure that
programme and performance planning, monitoring and management
of programme risks is managed daily and prioritized, so performance can be
championed within the agency
- Design improved methods of reporting by project implementers,
linked to pre-approved key performance indicators on programmes. This
function must be driven and monitored by a key resource in the agency, so
all reporting is not only reactive, but linked to solutions and
countermeasures, and monitoring of high — importance / high — impact
areas that could result in poor performance
- Investment in advanced monitoring and evaluation training for those
involved in project implementation
- Investment in a monitoring and evaluation baseline study to identify
benchmarks for performance planning, and performance review. This will
help motivate a business case for the agency, and highlight key
achievements against development mandate and predetermined

objectives
4) Improvement in partner selection Agency needs to:
and evaluation, and contracts - Create a formal method of selecting partners for development
management projects, to enter in meaningful MOU’s and SLAs, given CHDA's

disappointments from third parties in the past.

- All partnerships must be based on distinctive competencies the
agency does not have access to, so all partnerships are mutually
beneficial, and reduce the likelihood of non-performance on both parties

- Aformal method of vetting partners, and monitoring their performance
under the terms of the MOU are necessary, so un-beneficial partnerships
are cancelled timeously to mitigate associate strategic risk from non-
performance
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Non-Performance Issues Within Agency’s Area of Direct Control
- A formal method of evaluating technical partners, and effective
contracts management processes to ensure that contractual deliverables
are met by partners and CHDA strategic objectives are met

5) Improvement in project Planning, Agency needs to:

Implementation Management, - Develop a standard framework based on approved project

Reporting and Evaluation Processes management methodologies, such as PMBOK, on which to base project
planning, implementation, reporting and monitoring processes
- Key policy on project implementation to be developed, to assist with
project implementation through a standardized set of guidelines. This will
also assist with challenges on projects auditing

6) Improvement in disaster - The agency must investigate effective means of improving ICT capacity

management and business continuity and infrastructure to allow for emergency backup power at a reasonable

processes cost to allow business continuity at times of crisis and measures to procure
alternative combined power supply underway.

7) Improvement in risk identification, - The agency needs to improve its internal risk dentification, evaluation

mitigation strategies and monitoring processes, and have effective mechanisms for identifying, prioritizing

areas of risk that can have a negative impact on performance.

- The risk mitigation strategies need to be implemented, and action plan
~ implementation closely monitored

8) Improvement in policy, governance, - The agency must look at oversight more closely in future to ensure all
and oversight frameworks approved plans are monitored for progress, and key management held
accountable for implementation of plans and resolutions

- Policy framework review, to ensure a policy environment that support
ethical business, high performance, financial management and oversight,
as well as compliance

- Consequence management policy framework to be in place to boost
accountability

- Effective scheduling of oversight committees and structures, so that
reports are tabled, and performance against plans effectively monitored,
with action plans and remedial plans closely monitored to ensure no
regression on performance

Non-Performance Issues Outside of Agency’s Area of Direct Control

1) Default on MOU terms by third parties, or non-performance by technical partners

2) Non-receipt of approved funding for programme implementation

3) Social issues requiring social facilitation intervention before any LED initiative can be implemented successfully

4) Poor reporting by contracted third parties affecting key POE requirements on APP performance areas. There must
be clear consequences for contracted parties who fail to make reports available on time
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PART 11: ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Chris Hani Development Agency (SOC Limited)
(Registration number 2012/033437/30)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2024

General Information

General Information

Country of incorporation and domicile South Africa

Nature of business and principal activities Formed as a local economic development agency of the Chris Hani

Chief Executive Officer (CEQ)
Chief Finance Officer (CFQ)

Registered office

Business address

Controlling entity

Bankers

Auditors

Secretary
Company registration number
Tax reference number

Legislation

Preparer

CHRIS HANI DEVELOPMENT

District Municipality (CHDM) to enable and promote economic growth
in the Chris Hani District

Mr Abongile Hala
Ms Flicker Tiso

15 Warner Street
Quesnstown
5320

15 Warner Street
Queenstown
5320

Chris Hani District Municipality (CHDM)
incorpeorated in South Africa

First National Bank of South Africa (FNE)

Auditor-General of South Africa (AGSA)
Registered Auditors

Rilapax t/a William Radcliffe Attorneys

2012/033437130

9041087231

These annual financial statements have been audited in compliance
with the applicable requirements of the Companiss Act 71 of 2008 and
Municipal Finance Management Act 56 of 2003 and Regulations.

The annual financial statements were interally compiled by:
Ms F Tiso
Chief Financial Officer
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Chris Hani Development Agency (SOC Limited)

(Registration number 2012/033437/30)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023
Director's Responsibilities and Approval

The directors are requlred by the Municipal Finance Management Act {Act 56 of 2003), to maintain adequate accounting
records and are responsible for the content and integrity of the annual financial statements and related financial information
included in this regort. It is the responsibility of the directors to ensure that the annual financial statements fairly present the
state of affalrs of the entity as at the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then
ended. The extemal auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the anaual financial statements and was given
unrestricted access to all financial records and related data.

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting
Practice {(GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Beard,

The annual financial staterents are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by
reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.

The directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system ¢f Internal financial centrol established by the
entity and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong contro| environment. To enable the directors to meet these
respensibllities, the accounting officer sets standards for internal controf aimed at reducing the risk of error or deficit in a cost
sffective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibiliies within a clearly defined framework, effective
accounting pracedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored
throughout the entity and all employeas ‘are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the entity’s business
is conducted in a manner that in all reascnable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk managsment in the entity is
on identifying, assessing, managing and monitaring all known forms of risk across the entity. While operating risk cannot be
fully eiiminated, the entity endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical
behaviour are applied and managed within predeterminad procedures and constraints,

The directors are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of internal
controf provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the annual financial
statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or deficit.

The directors have reviewed the entity's budget flow forecast for the year to 30 June 2025 and, in the light of this review and
the current financial position, they are satisfied that the entity has or has access to adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future.

The entity is wholly dependent on the entity for continued funding of operations. The annual financial statements are preparad
on the basis that the entity is a going concern and that the entity has neither the intention nor the need to liguidate or curtail
materially the scale of the entity.

Arthough the accounting officsr are primarily responsible for the financiai affairs of the entity, they are supported by the entity's
external auditors.

The external auditors are responsible for independently reviewing and reporting on the entity's annual financial statements. The
annual financial statements have been examined by the entity's external auditors and thair report is presented on page 4.

The annual financial statements set out on page 4, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, ware approved by
the accounting officer on 31 August 2024 and were signed on its behalf by:

Mr. AA Haia ( Chief Executive Officer) Ms. W Dukuza {Interim Board Chairperson)

Designation Designation
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Chris Hani Development Agency (SOC Limited)
(Registration number 2012/033437/30)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Accounting Officer's Report

1.  Review of activities
2.  Going concern

We draw attention to the fact that at 30 June 2024, the entity had a deficit of R 2 831 700 and that the entity's total
assets exceed its liabilities by R 17 177 764,

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This
basls presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of asseis and settlsment of
liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will oceur in the ordinary course of business.

The ability of the entity to continue as a going concern is dependent or a number of factors, The most significant of these is
that the directors continue to pracure funding far the engoing operations for the entity and that the subordination agreement
referred to in note 22 of these annual financial statements will remain in force for sa long as it takes to restore the solvency of
the entity.

Principal events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern:

There are emerging factors that may cempromise the ability of the entity to operate as a going concern in future. These have
been identified as follows:

Material adjustments in the annual financial statements arising from incorrect recording of prior period over-spending grants
recorded as receivables. This has had a material impact in reduction of receivables by the entity

The ongaing challenge in recovery of debtors balances owed to the entity by various third parties is also posing a challenge.
‘Most of the debt disclosed runs the risk of being potentially bad debt that can never be recovered, which will have a materfal
impact in the entity’s ability to service its current commitments and seftle liabilities

The challenge with non-settlement of liabilities, especially the tax debt with SARS due to non-receipt of receivables is also a
challenge, as these balances are incuriing interest and penalties due to late payment and the impact on the unrecovered
receivables is affecting the entity’s ability to service this debt now and in future

The negative tax compliance also has a cumulative impact on own-income generation to supplement lost revenue as the
principal-agent agreement on infrastructure implementation has since not been renewed

The inability to generate revenue is further enabled and exacerbated by the decline in value of own-income generating assets,
due to depreciation and limitation in Capex budget to replace depreciated and cbsolete assets that can be utilised in own-
income generation activities

The entity is also limited in its revenue source from the oparational grant by the parent municipality, as operational expenditure
per annum axceeds the quantum of the annual budget allocation. This is also impacted by inability and challenges in in-income
generation, thus making it harder to meet immediate oparational expenditure and commitments on & month to month basis

The agency alsc doas not have a legacy of surplus funds and reserves in the bank, that can be utlised to supplement any
disruptions in own-income generation, and recovery of outstanding debt to fund immediate obligations. This then also POSEs 3
cashflow challengs, and possible inability to cover immediate expenses as they become due, and increase litigation risk from
creditors

Management's plan to remedy these events or conditions:
The board-approved financial recovery and turnaround plan is not being adequately monitored to manage the risks identified
above. The existing plan thus needs to be assessed, and its efficacy evaluated, and where possible, drastic amendments

effected that are in line with the current financial chailenges

The board and management nead to engage the parent municipality on issue of resalving the cutstanding debt owed to the
entity, prior to board writing off on these balances, with clear repayment terms to service this debt

The entity is also engaging the SARS unit on assistance in managing the tax debt, but this debt arrangement can only be
confirmed ence the status on outstanding receivables is resolved

CHRIS HANI DEVELOPMENT ANNUAL REPORT 30 JUNE 2024



Going concern {continued)

The entity has to review existing debt collectian and management policy, so any gaps can be identified affecting internal
processes on recovery of debt from third parties

An assessment of the current financial and budgst obligations of the entity needs to be conducted, so any possible cost-
minimisation efforts that can be explored be found to minimise impact on the over-stretched budget

The board and management need to re-visit the strategic programmes under Programme2 and Programme3, so any own-
income opportunities are tabled to the board, and clear financial models on revenue generation be identified, so own-income
can be generated from these high-impact projects in line with approved strategic chjsctives.

3. Share capital f contributed capital

The entity is 100% owned by Chris Hani District Municipality (CHDM), These are ardinary shares only.

4.  Dividends or similar distributions paid or received

No dividends have been proposed or declared during the period under review nor are any recommended.

5. Directors

The non executive directoprs comprising the Accounting Authority/Board members of the entity during the year and to the date
of this report are listed below. The entity also has an independent Audit and Risk Committee, shared with the parent municipality
during the year and to date of this report,show below(*™)

Name Nationality Changes
Ms. W Dukuza (Interim Board Chairpersan) South African

Adv. AM Mini (Board Chairperson) South African Resigned December 2023
Dr. ND Khawu South African

Mr. L Mbokotho South African

Mr. TR Ramabulana (Deputy Board Chairparson}  South African

Prof. WA Plaatjes** South African

Mr. MM Mbenenge** South African

Adv. N Blek South African

Ms. Z Manxilana-Klassen** South African

Mr. AM Langa** { Audit Committee Chairperson) South African

Ms. M Makapela ' South African

Mr. Y Madolo** South African

All non executive directors and independent committee members were appointed by the parent municipality. Al listed parties
are remunerated a sitting fee,approved by the parent municipality and disclosed in the Annual financial Statements under
Directors emoluments (Note 34)

.

uh—, nn 5£-u ”'
Mr. AA Hala ( Chief Executive Officer) Ms, W Dukuza {Interim Board Chairperson)
Designation Designation
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Chris Hani Development Agency (SOC Limited)

(Registration number 2012/033437/30)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023
Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2023

Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2024

Figures in Rand Notz(s) 2024 2023
Restated*
Assets
Currenf Assets
Receivables from exchange transactions 8 11 856 733 9843 755
Receivables from non-exchange transactions 9 2542 521 545723
Principal Agent Receivable 10 4 055 289 4774 494
Prepayments 7 15223 28 575
Cash and cash equivalents 11 2800 628 13833671
21 270 492 29026 218
Non-Current Assets
Investment property 2 488 350 1244 658
Property, plant and equipment 3 14 101 281 18 534 798
Intangible assets 4 104 229 17 642
14673860 19797 098
Non-Currant Assets 14 673 8860 19 797 098
Current Assets 21270492 29026218
Total Assets 35944 352 48 823 316
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Payables from exchange transactions 5 4 328 524 1933 868
VAT payable 12 016 041 14 391 140
Unspent conditional grants and receipts 13 218623 472183
Provisions 14 1747 340 3242 629
Principal Agent Payables 439 811 14 954 112
Bank averdraft 11 16 249 453
18 766 588 34 994 365
Non-Current Liabilities - -
Current Liahilities 18 7656 588 34 994 365
Total Liabilities 18 766 588 34 994 365
Assets 35 944 352 48 823 316
Liabilities {18 766 588) (34 994 365)
Net Assets 17 177 764 13 828 951
Share capital / contributed capital 12 1000 1000
Accumulated surplus 17 177 764 13 828 951
Total Net Assets 17178764 13 829 951
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Chris Hani Development Agency (SOC Limited)

(Registration number 2012/033437/30)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Statement of Financial Performance for the Year Ending 30 June 2023

- Statement of Financpl Performance

Figures in Rand Note(s} 2024 2023
. Restated*
|
Revenue
Revenue from exchaTge fransactions
Project Income 16 253 540 B 971 523
Mechanisation Centre Income 701 192 773 006
Tender Fees 3600 1800
QOther income 6391057 11609 181
Interest received - Bank 19 240048 169 153
Total revenue from exchange transactions 7 589 437 19 524 663
Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Transfer revenue
Government grants & subsidies 20 28625984 23913043
7589437 19524 663
28625984 23913043
Total revenue 15 36 215 421 43 437 706
Expenditure
Employee related costs 21 (17 965 710) (15 755 880)
Depreciation and amortisation 22 (4583 842) (4 702502)
Impairement loss 2 {723 825) -
Interest and penalties paid 23 (477 778) (4 088 270)
Lease rentals on operating lease 17 (253 487) {162 047}
Project costs-internal programs 26 {4332108) (6640 331)
Project costs-external programs 27 (253 540) (6 971 527)
General Expenses 25 (10 457 033) (9 69Y 595)
Total expenditure (39 047 121) (48 000 252)
Total revenue 36 215 421 43 437 706
Total expenditure (39 047 121) (48 000 252)
Operating surplus/deficit - -
Taxation - -
Deficit for the year (2831700) {4562 546)

CHRIS HANI DEVELOPMENT

ANNUAL REPORT 30 JUNE 2024



Chris Hani Development Agency (SOC Limited)

(Registration number 2012/033437/30)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Statement of Changes in Net Assets for the year ended 30 June 2023

Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Share capital / Accumulated  Total net
contributed  surplus / deficit  assefs

Figures in Rand capital
Cpening balance as previously reported 1000 7 367 799 7366 799
Adiustments
Prior year adjustments - 18801545 18801545
Balance at 01 July 2022 restated 1000 26169344 26170344
Changes in net assets
Fair value gains, net of tax: Land and buildings - (7T77847) (7777847
Net incoma (losses) recognised directly in net assets -~ (7T777847) (7 777 B47T)
Surplus for the year - {4562546) (4 562 546)
Total recognised incame and expanses for the year - (12 340393} (12 340 393)
Total changes - {12340 383) {12 340393)
Restated* Balance at 01 July 2023 1000 13828951 13829 951
Changes in net assets
Nat income {losses) recognised directly in net assets - 6180513 6180513
Surplus for the year - (2831700) (2831700)
Total changes - 3348813 3 348 813
Balance at 30 June 2024 1000 17177764 17178764
Nofe(s) 12
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Chris Hani Development Agency (SOC Limited)

(Registration number 2012/033437/30)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 30 June 2023

Cash Flow Statement

Figures in Rand Nole(s) 2024 2023
Restated*
Cash flows from operating activities
Receaipts
Sale of goods and services 6068968 14651234
Grants 26375546 17712085
Interest income 243048 169 153
32684562 32532472
Payments
Employese costs (17 985 710) (15 755 880)
Suppliers (31270 405) (6 468 350)
Finance costs (477 776) (4 068 270)
(49713 891) (26292 500)
Total receipts 32684562 32532472
Total payments (48713 891} (26 292 500)
Net cash flows from operating activities 28 (17029 329) 6239972
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 3 {116 847) (121 797)
Purchase of other intangible assets 4 (122 371) (18 022)
Net cash flows from investing activities (239 318) (140 819)
Cash flows from financing activities
Outflow of cther liability 1 - 439 811
Net cash flows from financing activities - 439 811
Net increasel/(decrease} in cash and cash equivalents (17 268 647} 6 538 964
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the ysar 13833218 303 520
Effect of exchange rate movement on cash balances 6 236 055 7430 545
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1 2800626 14273029
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Chris Hani Development Agency (SOC Limited)

(Registration number 2012/033437/30)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts for the year ended

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Cash Basis

Approved Adjustments  Final Budget Actual amounts Difference Refsrence
budget on comparable betwsen final
basis budget and
Figures in Rand actual

Statement of Financial Performance
Revenue

Revenue from exchange
transactions

Project Income 4 750 000 (2 540 040) 2 209 960 253540 (1956 420) 43.1
Mechanisation centre Own 1750 000 (990 000) 860 000 701 192 {148 808) 43.2
Income

Tender Feas 10 000 {6 400) 3600 3600 -

Other income Agency Fees 10 072 508 (4 021 241} 6 051 267 8301 057 339 790 43.3
Interest received - bank 157 950 42 050 200 000 240 048 40 048

Total revenue from exchange 16 740 458 (7 425 631) 9 314 827 7 589 437 (1 725 390}
transactions

Revenue from non-exchange

transactions

Transfer revenue

Government grants & subsidies 28 975 500 (18000) 28957500 23625984 (331 516)

"Total revenue from exchange 18 740 458 (7 425 631) 9314 827 7 589 437 {1725 380)
transactions’

"Total revenue from non- 28 75 500 (18 000) 28957500 28825984 (331 518)
exchange transactions'

Total revenue 45 715 958 (7 443 631) 38272327 36 215 421 (2 056 906)
Expenditure

Personnel (17 740 840) 42602 (17698238} (17 965 710) {267 472)
Depreciation and amortisation (8e3811) (2912122) (3905933) (4583642) (677 709) 43.7
Impairment loss/ Reversal of - - - (723 825) {723 825)
impairments

Interest and penalties - - - (477 778) (477 776) 43.4
lease rentals on operating lease (173 745) (79 742) (253 487} (253 487) -

Project cost-internal programs (7070000) 2969649  (4100351) (4332 108) (231757 435
Project cost-External programs {4 750 000} 2 540 040 {2 209 960) (253 540) 1 856 420 43.6
General Expenses (13 275 245) 2708174 (10567071} (10 457 033) 110 038

Total expenditure (44003 641) 5268601 (38 735040) (39 047 121) (312 081)

1712317 (2175 030) (462713) (2831700) (2368 987)

Deficit before taxation 1712 317 {2175 030) (462713) (2831700) (2 368 987)

Surplus before taxation 1712317 (2175 030) (462713)  (2831700) (2388 987)
Taxation - - - - -

Actual Amount on Comparable 1712317 (2175 030) (462 713) (2 831 700) (2 368 287)
Basis as Presented in the

Budget and Actual

Comparative Statement
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Chris Hani Development Agency (SOC Limited)

(Registration number 2012/033437/30)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023
Accounting Policies
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1.3 Comparative Information (continued)

Prior year comparatives

When the presentation or classification of items in the Annual Financial Statements is amended, prior peried comparative
amounts are also reclassified and restated, unless such comparative reclassification or restatement is not required by the
standard of GRAP. The nature and the reason for such reclassifications and restatements are also disclosed. When
material accounting errors, which relate to prior periods have been identified in the current year, the correction is made
retrospectively as far as is practicable and the prior year comparatives are restated accordingly. Where there has been a
change in accounting pelicy in the current year, the adjustment is made retrospectively as far as is practicable and the prior
year comparatives are restated accordingly. The presentation and classification of items in the current year is conslstent
with prior periods. This accounting policy remains consistent with the prior period.

14 Significant judgements and estimates

The use of judgement, estimates and assumptions is inherent to the process of preparing Annual Financlal Statements.
These judgements estimates and assumptions affect the amounts represented in the Annual Financial Statements. Use of
available information and the application of judgement is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future
could differ from these estimates which may be material to the Annual Financial Statements. Uncertainties about thase
estimates and assumptions could result in outcomes that require the material adjustment to the cairying amount of the
relevant asset or liability in future periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying those accounting policies, management has made the following judgements that may have a
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Estimates

Estimates are informed by historic experience, information currently available to management, assumptions and other
facters that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The estimates are reviewed on a regular basis,
Changes in estimates that are not due to errors ars processed in the period of the review and are applied prospectivaly.

Depreciation and Amortisation

Depreciation and amortisation recognised on Property, Plant and Equipment, Intangible Assets and [nvestment Property is
determined with reference to the useful lives and residual values of the underlying assets. The useful lives and residual
values of the assets are based on management's estimation of the assets condition, expected condition at the end of the
period in use, expected future use and entily's expectations about the avallabllity of finance to replace the asset at the end
of its useful life, In evaluating how the condition and the use of the asset informs the useful life and residual value
management considers the impact of technology and minimum service requirements of the asset.This accounting policy
remains consistent with the prior period.

Effective interest rate
The enfity uses an appropriate interest rate, taking info account guidance provided in the standards, and applying

professional judgement to the specific circumstances to discount future cashflows. The entity used the prime interest
rate.This accounting policy remains consistent with the prior period..
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1.4 Significant judgements and estimates (continued)
Provisions and Contingencies

Pravisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information available. Additional disclosure
of these estimates of provisions are included under provisions (Note 12 )

Provisions are recoghised when:
+ The entity has a present obligation as & result of a past event;
* Itis probable that an outflow of resources embedying economis benefits or service potential will be required to
settle the obligation; and
+ A reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to seftle the present
obligation at the reporting date.

Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of a prevision is the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation.

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the

risks specific to the liability.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions
are reversed if it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service
potential will be required, to settle the obligation.

Provisions are not recognised for {uture operating deficits.
After their initial recognition contingent fabilities recognised in entity combinations that are recognised separately are
subsequently measured at the higher of;

* The amount that would be recognised as a provision; and

* The amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Centingencies are disclosed in note 33.

Where afee is received by the entity for issuing a financial guarantee andfor where a fee is charged on loan
commitments, it is considered in determining the best estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation
at reporting date. Where a fee is charged and the entity considers that an outflow of economic resources is probable,
an entity recognises the obligation at the higher of:
+* The amount determined using in the Standard of GRAP
on Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.
This accounting policy remains consistent with the prier pariod.

1.5 Investment property

invastment property is property (land or a bullding - or part of a building - or both) held to eamn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both, rather than for:

. use in the production or supply of goods or services or for

. administrative purposes, or

. sale in the ordinary course of operations.

Owner-occupied property is property held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes.

Investment property is recognised as an asset when, it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential that
are associated with the investment property will flow to the entity, and the cost or fair value of the investment property can
be measured reliably.

Investment property is initially recognised at cost. Transaction costs are included in the initial measurement,

Where invesiment property is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at the date of
acquisition.

Costs include costs incurred intialty and costs incurred subsequently to add to, or to replace a part of, or service a property.
If a replacement part is recognised in the carrying amount of the investment property, the carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised.This accounting policy remains consistent with the prior period.
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1.6 Investment property (continued)
Cost model
Investment property is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write down the cost, less estimated residual value by equal installments over the useful life of
the property, which is as follows: '

ltem Useful life
Investment Property - buildings 20 years

This accounting pelicy remains consistent with the prior period.
1.6 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets {including infrastructure assets) that are held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used
during mare than one period,
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
*  itis probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the entity; and
«  the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost,
The cost of an Item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to
the location and conditlon necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost.
Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, Its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition,
Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, ora
cambination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value {the cost). If the

acquired item's fair value was not determinable, if's deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.

When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for
as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costa incurred
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service It. If a replacement cost s recognised in the carrying amount of an item of
property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

Land is not depreciated,

All other property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight-line basis over their expected useful lives to their
estimated residual value.

Property, plant and equlpment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

Where property, plant and equipment is carried at revalued amount, being the fair value at the date of revaiuation less any
subsequent accumulated depreclation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

When an item of property, plant and equipment is revalued, any accumulated depreciation at the date of the revaluation is
restated proportionately with the change in the gross carrying amount of the asset so that the carrying amount of the asset
after revaluation equals its revalued amount,

The useful lives of items of property, plant and eguipment have been assessed as follows:

Item Depreciation method Average/Adjusted useful
life

Land Straight-line Infinite

Buildings Straight-line 20 years

CHRIS HANI DEVELOPMENT ANNUAL REPORT 30 JUNE 2024



1.6 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Furniture and fixtures Straight-line 6 years
Motor vehicles Straight-line 5 years
Office squipment Straight-line 3years
Machinery Straightdine 6 years
Computer equipment Straight-line 3 years

The depreciable amount of an asset is allocated on a systematic basis over its useful life.

The depreciation method used reflects the pattern in which the asset's future economic benefits or service potential are
expected to be consumed by the entity. The depreciation method applied to an asset is reviewed at least at sach reporting
date and, if there has been a significant change in the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits or
service potential embodied in the asset, the method is changed to reflect the changed pattern. Such a change is accounted
for as a change in an agcounting estimate.

The entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the entity expactations about the residual
value and the useful life of an asset have changed since the preceding reporting date. If any such indication exists, the
entity revises the expected useful life andfor residual value accordingly. The change is accounted for as a change In an
accounting estimate.

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included In the carrying amount of
another asset,

ltems of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further
ecanomic henefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit
when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment
s determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.

The accounting policy was reviewad in line with changes in the GRAP standards for in full year amortisation of assets
valued at cost of up to R7000.

1.7 Intangible assets

An asset is identifiable if it either;

. is separable, |.¢., is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented
or exchanged, sither individually or together with a related contract, identifiable assets or liability, regardless of
whether the entity intends to do so; or

. arises from binding arrangements (including rights from contrasts), regardless of whether those rights are
transferable or separable from the entity or from other rights and obligaticns.

A binding arrangement describes an arrangemant that confers similar rights and obligations on the parties fo it as if it were
in the form of a contract,

An intangible asset is recognised when:
. it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are attributable to the asset will

flow to the entity; and
*  the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

The entity assesses the probability of expected future economic bensfits or service potential using reasonable and
supportable assumptions that represent management's best estimate of the set of economic conditions that will exist over
the useful life of the assel,

Where an intangible asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its initial cost at the date of acquisition is
measured at its fair value as at that date.

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
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1.7 Intangible assets (continued)

An Intangible asset s regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there iz no
foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows or service potential,
Amortisation is not provided for these intangible assets, but they are tested for Impairment annually and whenever there is
an indication that the asset may be impaired. For all other intangible assets amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis
over their useful life.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at each repotting date.
Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life after it was classified as indefinite is an indicator
that the asset may be impaired. As a rasult the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining carrying amount is
amorlised over its useful life.

Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and ftems simitar In substance are not recognised
as intangible assets.

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight-line basis, to their residual values as follows:

ltem Depreciation method Average useful life
Computer software Straight-line 3 years
Computer warranties Straight-line 3 years

Intangible assets are derecognised:
s on disposal; or
. when no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its use or disposal,

The accounting policy was reviewed and updated to include additional sub class under intangible assets, The identification
of subclass Computer warranties was recognised to suppart in year recognition of warranties procured.

1.8 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of cne entity and a financial liability or a residual
interest of ancther entity.

The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financlal asset or financial liability is
measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective
interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction (directly or
through the use of an allowance account) for impairment or uncollectibility.

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to
discharge an obligation.

Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognised financial asset or financial liability from an entity’s statement of
financial position.

Falr value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing parties
in an arm's length transaction.

A financlal asset is:
. cash;
. a residual interest of another entity; or
. a contractual right to:
- receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or
- exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with anaother entity under conditions that are potentially
favourable to the entity.

A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to:
. deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or
® exchange financial assets or fihancial liabilities under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the antity.

Liquidity risk is the risk encountered by an entity in the event of difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial assat.
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1.8 Financial instruments (continued)

. equity instruments or similar forms of unitised capital;

*  aformal designation of a transfer of resources (or a class of such transfers) by the parties to the transaction as
forming part of an entity's net assets, sither before the contribution occurs or at the time of the contribution: or

= aformal agreement, in relation to the contribution, establishing or increasing an existing financial interest in the
net assets of an enfity.

. the entity designates at fair value at initial recognition; or

. are held for frading.

Financial instruments at fair value comprise financial assets or financial liabilities that are;
. derivatives;
. combined instruments that are designated at fair value.

Classification

The entity has the following types of financial assets {classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of
financial position ar in the notes thereto:

Class Category
Prepayments Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Regceivables* Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Cash and cash equivalents Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Principal Agency receivables Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Other raceivables Financial asset measured at amortised cost

The entity has the Tollowing types of financial liabilities (classes and category) as reflected on the faca of the statement of
financial position or in the notes thereto:

Class Category
Other payables Finangial liability measured at amortised cost
Unspent conditional grants Financial liability measured at amortised cost
RBank overdraft** Financial iiability measured at amortised cost
Princlpal Agent Payables Financial Eability measured at amortised cost
Provisions™* Financial liability measured at amortised cost
VAT Payable Financial liabllity measured at amortised cost

The accounting palicy was reviewed and updated to include additional classes of financial instruments marked as
(**). These were not listed in the prior period.The revised standard effective 1 April 2025 will be evaluated for applicability to
the entity's accounting policy on financial instruments.

1.9 Leases

A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership.

Operating leases - lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference
befween the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset
or liability. This accounting policy remains consistent with the prior period.

1.10 Impairments

Cash-generating assets are assets used with the objective of generating a commercial return. Commercial returh means
that positive cash flows are expected to be significantly higher than the cost of the asset.

Impairment is a loss In the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic
recognition of the loss of the asset's future economic benefits or service potential through depreciation (amortisation).

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial position after deducting any
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment logses thereon.
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1.10 Impairments {(continued)

A cash-generating unit is the smaliest identifiable group of assets used with the objective of generating a commercial return
that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets.

Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding finance costs and income
tax expense.

Depreciation (Amortisation) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life.

Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm'’s length transaction between
knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal,

Recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its valus in
use.

Useful life is either;
. the period of time aver which an asset is expected to be used by the entity; or
*  the number of production or similar units expscted to be obtained from the asset by the entity.

1.11 Share capital / contributed capital

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities, This accounting policy remains consistent with the prior period,

1.12 Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that are due to be settled within
twelve maonths after the end of the period in which the employses rendered the related service.

Short-term employee benefits Include items such as:

*  wages, salaries and soclal security contribution;

. short-term compensated absences {such as paid annual leave and paid sick leave} where the compensation for
the absences is due to be settied within twelve months after the end of the reporting period in which the
employees render the related employee service;

. bonus, incentive and performance related payments payable within twelve months after the end of the reporting
period in which the employees render the related service; and

. hon-monetary benefits (for example, medical care, and free or subsidised goods or services such as housing,
cars and cellphones) for current employees.

When an employee has rendered service to the entity during a reporting period, the entity recognises the undiscounted
amount of shart-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service:

. as a liability {accrued expense), after deducting any amount already paid. If the amount already paid exceeds the
undiscounted amount of the benefits, the entity recagnises that excess as an asset {prepaid expense)} o the
extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash refund: and

*  asan expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an asset.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employses render services that increase
their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs. The entity measures the
expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount that the entity expects to pay as a result of
the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the repotting date.

The entity recognises the expectad cost of bonus, incentive and performance related payments when the entity has a

present legal or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past events and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made. A present obligation exists when the entity has no realistic alternative but to make the payments.
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1.13 Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recagnised when;
. the entity has a present obligation as a result of a past avent;
. it is probable that an outflow of resources embaodying economic benefits or service potential will be reguired to
settle the obligation; and
* areliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the hest estimate of the expenditure expected 1o be required to settle the present obligation at
the reparting date.

Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation.

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
spacific to the liability.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be relmbursed by ancther party, the
reimbursement is recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that raimbursement will be received if the entity
settles the obligation. The reimbursement is treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement
does not exceed the amount of the provision.

Provisions are reviewsd at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current hest estimate. Provisions are reversed If It
is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required, fo
settle the obligation.

Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each period to reflect the passage of time. This
increase Is recognised as an interest expense,

A provision is Used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating deficit,

If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract is recognised and
measured as a provision.

A constructive obligation to restructure arises only when an entity:

. has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring, identifying at least:
- the activity/operating unit or part of an activity/operating unit concerned;
- the principal locations affected;
- the location, function, and approximate number of employees who will be compensated for services being
terminated;
- the expenditures that will be undertaken; and
- when the plan will be implemented; and

. has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement that
plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it.

A restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are those that are both:
o necessarily entailed by the restructuring; and
. not associated with the engoing activities of the entity

No obligation arises as a consequence of the sale or transfer of an operation until the entity is committed to the sale or
transfer, that is, there is a binding arrangement.

After their initial recognition contingent liabilities recognised in entity combinations that are recognised separately are
subsequently measured at the higher of:

*  the amount that would be recognised as a provision; and

. the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Conlingencies are disclosed (Note 33).

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburss the halder for
a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the original or modified
terms of a debt instrument.
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1.13 Provisions and contingencies (continued)
Lean commitment is a firm commitment to provide credit under pre-spacified terms and conditions.

The entity recognises a provision for financial guarantees and loan commitments when if is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits and service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate of the chligation can be made.

Determining whether an outflow of rescurces is probable in relation to financial guarantees requires judgement. Indications
that an outflow of resources may be probable are:
. financial difficulty of the debtor;
. defaults or definquencies in interest and capital repayments by the debtor;
®  breaches of the terms of the debt instrument that result in it being payable earlier than the agreed term and the
ability of the debtor to settle its obligation on the amended terms; and
. a decline in prevailing economic circumstances {e.g. high Interest rates, inflation and unemployment) that impact
on the ahility of entities to repay their obligations,

Where a fee is received by the entity for issuing a financial guarantee and/or where a fee is charged on loan commitments,
it is considered in determining the best estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at reporting date. Where a
fee is charged and the entity considers that an cutflow of economic resources Is probable, an entity recognises the
obligation at the higher of:
= the amoun{ determined using in the Standard of GRAP on Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets; and
* the amount of the fee inifially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions.
This accounting policy remains consistent with the prior period.

1.14 Commitments

ltems are classified as commitments when an entity has committed itself to future transactions that will normally result in the
outflow of cash.

Disclosures are required in respect of unrecognised contractual commitments.

Commitments for which disclesure is necessary o achieve a fair presentation should be disclosed in a note to the financial
statements, if both the following criteria are mst: -
. Contracts should be non-cancellable or only cancellable at significant cost (for example, contracts for computer
or building maintenance services); and
¢ CGontracts should relate to something ather than the routine, steady, state business of the entity — therefore
salary commitments relating to employment contracts or social security benefit commitments are excluded.This
accounting policy remains consistent with the prior period.

1.15 Revenue from exchange transactions

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic bensfits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows result
in an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.

An exchange transaction is one in which the entity recsives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly
gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the other party in exchange.

Fair value s the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing
parties in an arm'’s length transaction.

Measurement

Revenve is measurad at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of frade discounts and volume
rebates.

The amount of revenue arising on a transaction which is statutory (non-contractual) in nature is usually measured by
reference to the relevant legislation, regulation or similar means. The fee structure, tariffs or calculation basis specified in
legislation, regulation ar similar means is used to determine the amount of revenue that should be recognised, This amount
represents the fair value, on initial measurement, of the consideration received or receivable for revenue that arises fram a
statutory (non-contractual) arrangement {see the accounting policy on Statutory Receivables),
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1.15 Revenue from exchange transactions (continued)
Rendering of services

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated with
the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completicn of the transaction at the reporting date, The outcome
of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfled:

¢ the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic bensfits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity;

. the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and

*  the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured refiably.

When services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified time frame, revenus is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the specified time frame unless there Is evidence that some other method better represents the
stage of completion. When a specific act is much more significant than any other acts, the recognition of revenue is
postponed until the significant act is executed.

When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is
recognised only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable.

Service revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. Stage of
completion is determined by services performed to date as a percentage of fotal services to be performed.

1.16 Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and receivable by an entity, which
represents an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contrlbutions from owners.

Conditions on fransferred assets are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential
embodied in the asset is required to be consumed by the recipient as specified or future economic benefits or service
potential must be returned to the transferor.

Control of an asset arise when the entity can use or otherwise benefit from the asset in pursuit of Its cbjectives and can
exclude or otherwise regulate the access of others to that benefit,

Exchange transactions are transactions in which one entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and
directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of cash, goods, services, or use of assats) to another entity in
exchange,

Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non-exchange transaction, an entity
either receives value from another entity without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange, or gives value to
another entity without directly receiving approximately equal valug in exchange.

Transfers are inflows of future economic benefits or service potential from non-exchange transactions, other than taxes.

Measurement

Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets recognised by the
entity.

When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the entity recognises an asset, it also recoegnises revenus equivalent to
the amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, unless it is also required to recognise a
liability. Where a liability is required to be recognised it will be measured as the best estimate of the amount required to
settle the obligation at the reporting date, and the amount of the increase in net assets, if any, recegnised as revenue,.
When a liability is subsequently reduced, because the taxable event ocours or a condition is satisfied, the amount of the
reduction in the liability is recognised as revenue.
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1.17 Segmentation

The entity notes the requirement for segment reporting in the Annual Financial Statements. This requirement was not met in
the prior reporting period, and has not been done in the current pericd. The entity relies on segment reporting as part of the
Annual Financial Statements consolidation process with the parent municipality, as the entity is 100% owned by the Chris
Hani District Municipality, and operates under an approved mandate,

1.18 Accounting by principals and agents

Identification

An agent Is an entity that has been directed by another entity (a principal), through a binding arrangement, to undertake
transactions with third parties on behalf of the principal and for the benefit of the principal.

An agent is an entlty that has been directed by another entity (a principal), through a binding arrangement, to undertake
transactions with third parties on behalf of the principal and for the benefit of the principal.

A princlpal is an entity that directs another entity (an agent), through a binding arrangement, to undertake transactions with
third parties on its behalf and for its own benefit.

A principal-agent arrangement results from a binding arrangement in which one entity (an agent), undertakes transactions
with third parties on behalf, and for the benefit of, another entity (the principal).

Accounting for principal-agency transactions

The entity makes assessments on whether it is an agent in principal-agent relationships. In doing so It continuously
assesses whather it (as outlined in GRAP 109):

» has the power to determine the significant terms and conditions of the transaction.
« the ability to use all, or substantially all, of the resources that result from the transaction for its own benefit.

+ is not exposed to variability in the results of the transaction.
Where a principal-agent arrangement exists and arlses from a binding arrangement that results in the entity being an agent,
the resulting transactions such as revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities are accounted and disclosed as principal-agent

amounts and balances.Addilional Information is discloesed in the Annual Financial Statements under accounting for
principals and agents (Note 46).

Identifying whether an entity is a principal or an agent

When the entity is party to a principal-agent arrangement, it assesses whether it is the principal or the agent in accounting
for revenue, expenses, assets andfor liabilities that result from transactions with third parties undertaken in terms of the

arrangement.

The assessment of whether an entity Is a principal or an agent requires the entity to assess whether the transactions it
undertakes with third parties are for the benefit of another entity or for its own benefit.

Binding arrangement

The entity assesses whether it is an agent or a principal by assessing the rights and obligations of the various parties
established in the binding arrangement.

Where the terms of a binding arrangement are modified, the parties to the arangement re-assess whether they act as a
ptincipal or an agent,
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1.18 Accounting by principals and agents {continued)
Assessing which entity benefits from the transactions with third parties

When the entity in a principal-agent arrangement concludes that it undertakes transactions with third parties for the benefit
of another entity, then it is the agent. If the entity concludes that it is not the agent, then it is the principal in the transactions.

The entity is an agent when, in relation to transactions with third parties, all three of the following criteria are present:
. It does not have the power to determine the significant terms and canditions of the transagtion.
. It does not have the ahility to use all, or substantially all, of the resources that result from the transaction for its
own benefit.
. It is not exposed to variability in the results of the transaction.

Where the entity has been granted specific powers in terms of legislation to direct the terms and conditions of particllar
transactions, it is not required to consider the criteria of whether it does nat have the power to determine the significant
terms and conditions of the transaction, to conclude that is an agent. The enfity applies judgement in determining whether
such powers exist and whether they are relevant in assessing whether the entity is an agent.

Recognition

The entity, as a principal, recognises revenue and expenses that arise from transactions with third parties in a principal-
agent arrangement in accordance with the requirements of the relevant Standards of GRAP.,

The entity, as an agent, recognises only that portion of the revenue and expenses it receives or incurs in executing the
transactions on behalf of the principal in accordance with the requiremeants of the relevant Standards of GRAP.

The entity recagnises assets and liabilities arising from principal-agent arrangements in accordance with the requirements
of the relevant Standards of GRAP.This accounting policy remains consistent with the prior period.

1.19 Unauthorised expenditure

Unauthorised expenditure means:
e overspending of a vote or a main division within a vote; and
*  expenditure not in accordance with the purpose of a vote or, in the case of a main division, not in accordance
with the purpose of the main division.

All expenditure relating to unauthorised expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance
in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the expense,
and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue In the statement of financial perfermance.This
accounting policy remains cansistent with the prior period.

1.20 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had reascnable care been
exercised.

All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial
petrformance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of
the expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial
performance.This accounting policy remains consistent with the prior period.

1.21 Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the Municipal Finance Management Act {(Act No.56 of 2003), the
Muricipal Systems Act (Act No.32 of 2000), and the Public Office Bearers Act (Act No. 20 of 1998) or is in contravention of
the economic entity’s supply chain management policy. Irregular expenditure excludes unautherised expenditure. Irregular
expenditure is accounted for as expenditure in the Statement of Financial Performance and where recovered, it is
subsequently accounted for as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance.This accounting policy remains
consistent with the prior period.

1.22 Budget information

The entity typically subject to budgetary limits in the form of appropriations or budget authorisations {or equivalent), which is
given effect through authorising legislation, appropriation or similar.
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1.22 Budget information (continued)

General purpose financial reporting by entity shall provide information on whether resources were obtained and used in
accordance with the legally adopted budget.

The approved budget is prepared on a cash basis and presented by economic classification linked to performance outcome
objectives,

The approved budget covers the fiscal periad from 2023/07/01 to 2024/06/30.
The budget for the economic entity includes all the entities approved budgets under its control.

The Annual Financial Statements and the budget are oh the same basis of accounting therefore a comparison with the
budgeted amounts for the reporting period have been included in the Statement of compatison of budget and actual
amounts.This accounting policy remains consistent with the priar period.

1.23 Related parties

A related party is a person or an entity with the ability to control or jointly control the other party, or exercise significant
influence over the other party, or vice versa, or an entity that is subject to commeon control, or joint control.

Control is the power te govern the financial and oparating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Joint control is the agreed sharing of centrol over an activity by a binding arrangement, and exists only when the strategic
financial and operating decisions relating to the activity require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control (the
venturers).

Related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between the reporting entity and a related party,
regardless of whether a price is charged.,

Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of an entity, but is not control
over those policies.

Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, including those
charged with the governance of the entity in accordance with legislation, In instances where they are required to perform
such functions.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by
that person in their dealings with the entity. This accounting pclicy remains consistent with the pricr period.

1.24 Events after reporting date

Events after reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfaveurable, that ocour between the reporting date and
the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:
. those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date (adjusting events after the reporting

date); and
. those that are indicative of canditions that arose after the reporting date (non-adjusting events after the reporting

date),

The entity will adjust the amount recognised in the financial statements to reflect adjusting events after the reporting date
chce the event occurred,

The entity will disclose the nature of the event and an estimate of its financial effect or a statement that such estimate
cannot be made in respect of all material non-adjusting events, where non-disclosure could influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.This accounting policy remains consistent with the prior
period.
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2024 2023

2. Investment property

2024 2023
Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value Cost/ Accumulated Cartying value
Valuation depreciation Valuation depreciation
and and
accumulated accumulated
impairment impairment
Investment property 1400 000 (831 650) 468 350 1400 000 {155 342) 1244658
Reconciliation of investment property - 2024
Opening Impairments  Depreciation Total
balance
Investment property 1244 858 {723 825) (52 483) 488 350
Reconciliation of investment property - 2023
Opening Depreciation Total
balance
Investment property 1314658 (70 000} 1244 658

The entity has elected to measure its investment property using the cost model.

The investment property was acquired on behalf of a livestack commercial project identified in prior periods, where a local co-
operative would be provided financial support towards acquisition and commercialisation of an old biltong and droe-wors
processing facility in Molteno, There have been internal disputes within the co-operative, resulting the asset being ragistered
under the entity, as a risk mitigation measure to prevent any losses as public funds had been utilised to acquire the property.

Due to lying dormant and unutilised for a significant periad of time, it was noted that the investment property was vandalised
and stripped. During the last quarter of the finangial year, the entity sought the guidance of a commercial property valuation
expert to assess the condition of the investment property. This impairment was recognised in the assessment and valuation
report, and has thus baen recognised in the annual financial statements.
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2024 2023

8. Receivables from exchange transactions

Receivable-Mechanisation services 304 788 254 189
Receivable-Industrial Park tenants 1044 582 914 607
Receivable-Internal and other debtors 545 430 1194 073
Raceivable-DEA payrall control 3 854 38564
Receivable-Infrastructure agency fee* 9 858 068 7 477 032

11 866 733 9843 755

*The entity acts as an implementing agent on bahalf of the parent municipality, where it performs activities cutside of its
development mandate. The role of the entity ss implementing and managing identified infrastructure projects on behalf of the
municipality, towards the water /sanitation projects backlog eradication programme, There is a Memarandum of Agreament
(MOA) entered by both parties detailing cbligations of both parties.

The entity implements identified projects and charges a 10% administration / project management fee per claims certificate
submitted per infrastructure project implemented. The entity relies on a panel of profassional engineers and contractors to fulfil
its implementation role. The project expenditure is funded by infrastructure grants allocated to the municipality under MIG
ANSIG / WSIG. The CHDA works with the Technical Services / Engingering directorate within the municipality in fulfilling its role
as agent, and its related accountability role to the principal and project funder{s}.

The validity period was extended to end June 2024 to allow for effective project handaver and completion of in-progress and
approved infrastructure projects, thus starting the process towards a formal ceding back and handover of infrastructure
projects, as well as cleseout reporting.

During the implementation period, there have however been noted delays in the receipt of agency fees charged by the entity,
resulting in the disclosed outstanding balances. A greater concer is the ageing of the disclosed balances, where a significant
balance is older than 12 months, and cannot all be confirmed with the debtor. This has raised some possibility of a dispute
between the entity and the municipality, which is currently being resclved through formal engagement processes as part of the
project handover and close-out processes. This process is anticipated to reconcile and confirm any outstanding balances owed
to the entity in unpaid agency fees, and any unpaid implementation fees, retention and performance guarantses.

The movement of balances will be menitored, and any outcome from the engagement processes disclosed in the annual
financial statements in line with final outcomeAdditional text

9. Receivables from non-exchange transactions

Receivable-CHDM unpaid subsidy (operations) - 545723

The balance is relating to final drawdown of operational subsidy unpaid as at the end of the financial year.

10. Principal Agent Receivables

Receivable-ECDRDAR irrigation schemme payroll 52 608 4156174
Receivable-Seta funded skills programme - 43 313
Receivable-CETA Internship 167 843 117 633
Receivable-CHDM industrial park operations 2 609 237 2 495 865
Receivable-CHDG co-operative support 1235 601 1235 600
Receivable-DEA retention fees - 486 909

4 055 289 4 774 494

11. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2024 2023

11. Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

Cash on hand 62 103
Bank balances 2794 357 6 212 554
Short-term deposits 6 207 7621014

2800626 13833671

Current assets 2800626 13833671
Current liabiiities (18 249) (453)
2784377 13833218

The entity does not have an overdraft pelicy, and the disclosed overdraft arose from debit orders at the end of June 2024 being
deducted where the bank had insufficient funds and not returned by banker awaited the entity to effect a credit adjustment,

The entity also had a pledge against the main transacting account, amounting to R 2 317 248.21, resulting from a court-
approved attachment order instituted by an unpaid creditor. The amount was in dispute, as thera were material inconsistencies
in the final demand and attachment order, as entity was not in agreement with the balances depicted as owed. The bankers
thus executed on the court order, resulting the indicated value of funds being inaccessible to the entity as at 30 June 2024. The
entity is working on resolving the dispute, with the intention of releasing the pledge on the main bank account and securing any
applicable refunds should tha bank honour the held and pay over the pledged amount to the creditor. The pledged amount thus
comprises part of the total cash and cash equivalents and bank balances at year end.

The entity had the following bank accounts

Account number / description Bank statement balances Cash book balances
30 June 2024 30 June 2023 30 June 2022 30 June 2024 30 June 2023 30 June 2022

FNB MAIN 623 636 541 56 2 406 338 6201 089 301 478 2 406 338 6201088 301 476
FNB SKILLS 623 980 858 g9 387 480 8 368 387 480 8 368
FNB INV 823 789 426 18 6 207 7621014 ; 203 6 207 7621014 203
FNB DEA 624 578 562 98 44 75 (77) 44 75 (77)
FNB MECH 625 407 434 83 (16 224) 10 512 (371} {16 224} 10512 371)
FNB PETTY 625 407 426 83 494 868 1148 494 8638 1148
Total 2784 339 13 833 566 302 747 2784 339 13 833 5668 302 747

12. Share capital / contributed capital

Issued
Ordinary 1000 1 000

The entity is 100% owned by the Chrig Hani District Municipality {CHDM). There are 1000 ordinary shares at R1 each.
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2024 2023

13. Unspent conditional grants and receipts

Unspent conditional grants and receipts comprises of:

Unspent conditional grants and receipts

CHDM-Irrigation Schemes Grant 451 52 531

CHDM-Kemani Industrial Park 2478 2478

CHDM-Livestock Improvement Grant 1735 181 735

CHDM- Biltong Factory Grant 8 501 19 861

CHDM-Hetritage Project Grant 310 310

CHDM-Coal Mining Exploration Grant 174 200 174 200

CHDM-Fertiliser Blending Grant 30948 30 948
218 623 472 163

This comprises project conditicnal grant funds paid to the entity in prior periods, forming part of closing cash and cash
equivalents at year end.These are unspent grants where conditions to recoghise expenditure were not met by the entity.

14. Provisions

Reconciliation of provisions - 2024

QOpening Additions  Utilised during Reduction due Total
Balance the year to re-
measurement
or settlement
without cost to
entity
Provision for Perfomance Bonus 1746 218 - - (1746 218) -
Provision for future repairs 44 200 - (44 200) - -
Provision for Leave 1452 211 285 129 - - 1747 340
3242629 255 129 (44 200) (1746 218) 1747 340
Reconciliation of provisions - 2023
Opening Total
Balance
Provision for Perfomance Bonus 1748 218 1746 218
Provigion for Leave 1452211 1452 211
Provision for future repairs 44 200 44 200
3242629 3242629
15. Revenue
Interest received (trading) 240 048 169 153
Project Income 253 540 6 871523
Mechanisation Cantre Income 7011982 773 006
Tender Feas 3600 1800
Other income-searvice,admn and iplementation feas 6 391 057 11608 181
Goverment grant subsidy 28 625 084 23613 043
36 216 421 43 437 706
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2024 2023

15. Revenue (continued)

The amount included in revenue arising from exchanges of goods or services

are as follows:

Project Income 253 540 B 971 523

Mechanisation Centre own income 701 182 773 006

Tender Fees 3600 1 800

Other income 6 391 057 11 609 181

Interest received-bank interest 240 048 169 153
7 589 437 19 524 663

The amount included in revenue arising from non-exchange transactions is as

follows:

Taxation revenue

Transfer revenue

Government grants & subsidies 28 625 884 23913 043

16. ProjectIncome

CHDM Komani Industrial Park Critical Infra - 3133 542

CHDM Livestock development project 190 000 1451 317

CHDM Komani Industrial Park - 631 853

CHDM-Irrigation scheme 52 080 599 711

CHDM-Eysthu Biltong 11 460 237 500

CHDM-Fertiliser blending - 498 809

CHDM Coal exploration mining - 98 791

CHDM-Investment summit - 320 000

253 540 6 971 523

17. Lease rentals on operating lease

Equipment

Contractual amounts 253 487 162 047

The agency entered inte a service level agreement with NRG Copiers, for leasing of copier machines on a fixed rental per
month. The lease period came to an end In June 2024, with no renewal active inte the new financial year.

18. Otherincome

Other income-insurance claim payout

Other income-Sponsorships and Donation Fees
Other income-DRDAR Implementation Agency Fees
Other income-CETA Agency Fees

Other income-lnvestment Summit

Other income-Infrastuciure Agency Fees

Other income-KIP Rentals

Other income-Commision, Refunds and other

62 169 53 086
80 348 284 276
220919 199 641
105 138 2489 313

- 55 200

4936 578 0474 418
829619 1323 247
156 288 -

6 381 057 11 609 181
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2024 2023

19. Investment revenue

Interest revenue
Bank interest 240 048 189 153

240 048 168 153

The bank confirmation letter on interast earned in-year was received, and reconciled to the monthly bank statements and
recenciliations.
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
Figuras in Rand 2024 2023

20. Government grants & subsidies

Operating grants
Government grants and subsidies 28625854 23913043

28625854 23913043

CHDM-Operational Grant

Current-year receipts 28 414 879 23913043
Conditions met - transferred to revenue {28 625 854) (23913 043)
{2210 975) -

The sntity drew down the entire budgst allocation for cperational subsidy approved by the parent municipality In 202372024,
The bulk of the funds ware received by 30 June 2024, sxcept for an amount totalling R2 542 621 which remianed unpaid at
year-and. This balance is reflected under the receivables from non-exchange transactions.

CHDM-Irrigation Schemes Revitalisation Grant

Balance unspent at beginning of year 52 531 6o

Currant-year receipts - 852 173

Conditions met - fransferred to revenue (52 080) (599 711)
4851 52 531

The grant was intended to support revitalisation of the large irfigation schemes in the Ghris hani District, with a focus on
covering technical studias,planning, infrastructure improvement and operational costs.

CHDM Komani Industrial ParkCritical Infra

Balance unspant at beginning of year (3133542} -
Conditions met - transferred to revenue - {3133542)
Other 3133542 -

- {3133542)

The grant was intended to assist towards the upgrade the Komani Industrial Park Infrastructure, through facilitation of
technical planning dacuments and studiss nesded to access funding with the DTIC towards park infrastructure
improvement gran

CHDM Investment Summit Grant

Current-year receipts - 320 000
Conditions met - fransferred fo ravenue - {320 000)

The grant was intended {o support investment promotion activities, and hosting of investment mobilisation events and
stakehelder engagement platforms

CHDM Livestock Improvement

Balance unspent at baginning of year 191735 948 481
Current-year receipts - 1 304 348
Conditions met - transferred to revenue {180 000} (1451 317)
Other - (608 757)
1735 191 7356
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Notes fo the Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2024 2023

20. Government grants & subsidies (continued)

The grant was intended to funding of a livestock / anmimal health and vaccination program towards support for local
farmers.

CHDM Biltong
Balance unspent at beginning of year 19 961 257 461
Conditions met - transferred to revenue {11 460) (237 500)

8 501 19 961

The grant was intended towards revitalisation of the Biltong Factory in Molteno,and assist local co-cperative with
arrangements and technical support towards commecialisaticn

DEBEAT-Chris Hani Packhouse

Balance unspent at beginning of year (1621 989) -
Conditions met - transferred to revenue - (1621 989)
Othar 1821989 -

- (1621 989)

The ghrant was intended to support the Chris Hani Cooperative Davelopment Centre in implementing the approved funding
for agro-processing facility, through establishment of an agri/fresh produce packhouse in Komani. The packhouse is not yet
operational

CHDM Heritage projects

Balance unspent at beginning of year 310 310

The grant was intended to assist with maintenance and restoration of identified historic heritage site

CHDM Coal exploration mining

Balance unspent at beginning of year 174 200 698 400
Current-year receipts - (498 809)
Conditions met - transferred to revenue - (25 391)

174 200 174 200

The grant was intended to assist with social facilitation and tachnical feasibility studies towards establishing coal exploration
and mining activity in the Chris Hani District

CHDM Fertiliser Blending Feasihility Study

Balance unspent at beginning of year 30 948 104 348

Current-year receipts - 25 391

Conditions met - transferred to revenue - {68 791}
30 948 30 948

The grant was intended for technical management suppert, capacity building services and development, business
facilitation services and other strategic services required fo support co-operatives in the Chris Hani District.

CHDM Komani Industrial Park

Balance unspent at beginning of year 2478 (381 037)
Current-year receipts - 1822 188
~ Conditions met - transferred to revenus - (831 853)
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2024 2023

20. Government grants & subsidies {continued)
Other - {808 830)

2478 2478

The grant was intended for support towards site maintanance, technical siudiss and security for the Komani Industrial Park
operations.The R2 million budget allocation for 2023/2024 was not received from the funder.

CHDM Economic Infrastructure

Balance unspent at beginning of yaar (451 377) (451 377)
Other 451 377 -

- (451 377)

The grant was intended for the finalisation of technical studies for bulk infrastruciure upgrades to support funding
application to the DTIC towards Komani Industrial Park infrastructure improvements

CHDM Mechanical Workshop

Balance unspent at beginning of year {545 725) - {545725)
Credit note passed due to incorrect billing 545 725 -

- {545.7251
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2024 2023
21, Employee related costs
Basic ) 15 389 965 13 535 481
Leave accrual 295 122 -
Medical aid - company centributions 887 192 797 254
UIF 61389 80 578
WCA 36 885 34 647
SDL 155 902 138 121
Leave encashments 123 928 142 §21
Defined contribution plans 1015320 1046 578
17 965 710 15 755 880
Remuneration of Chief Executive Officer
Annual Remunersation 1875 461 312 877
Car Allowance - 420 g¢11
Backpay and Salary adjustments 49700 -
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 1785 -
1926 946 733 488

The position of the Chief Executive Officer {CEQ) was filled in May 2023, after an extendsd acting period. Thers were thus
no acting allowances paid out to incumbent in the 2023-2024 financial period. There was a backpay effected in June 2024,

whare a 2.65% salary increase was approved by the board due to delays in sffecting salary increases at start of the

financial period. This was applied to the basic salary component.

All these costs and allowances have been included as part of the overall payroll / employes costs incurred by the entity in

the pericd 1 July 2023 to 30 June 2024.

Remuneration of Chief Finance Officer

Annual Remuneration 1260429 -
Car Allowance 43 920 87 840
Backpay and Salary adjustments 10 606 -
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 125 298 -

1440 253 87 840

The position of the Chief Finance Officer (CFO) was filled in December 2023, after an axiended acting perlod. There were
thus acting allowances paid out to acting incumbent in the 2023-2024 financial period, from July 2023 to December 2023.
There was a backpay effected in June 2024, where a 2.65% salary increase was approved hy the board due to delays in
effecting salary increases at start of the financial period. This was applied to the basic salary component, but limited to the
former position prior to confirmation as CFO. All these costs and allowances have been included as part of the overall

payroll / employee costs incurred by the entity in the period 1 July 2023 te 30 June 2024,

Remuneration of Executive Manager Operations

Annual Remuneration 1236 780 1232 968
Car Allowance 25702 -
Backpay and Salary adjustments . 08775 103 441

1361 257 1336 408

All these costs and allowances have been included as part of the overall payroll / employee costs incurred by the entity in

the pericd 1 July 2023 to 30 June 2024.
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2024 2023

22. Depreciation and amortisation

Property, plant and equipment (4 496 768) (4627 148)
Investment property (52 483} (70 000)
Intangible assets (34 391} {5 356)

(4583642} (4702502)

23. Interest and Penalties

Late payment of tax ' 477 776 4068 270

24. Auditors' remuneration

External audit Fees (Auditor General of South Africa 1 456 086 1508 323
Internal audit Fees {SNG Grant Thornton) 1150319 678 729

2606415 2185 052

25. General expenses

Advertising 97 115 -
Assessmeni rates & municipal charges 533 424 225 553
Auditors remuneration 2606 415 2185 052
Bank charges 58 831 50 660
Cleaning 435 400 269 152
Censulting and professional fees 425 643 567 700
Consumablas - 20000
Donations - 254 278
Entertainment 10202 18 607
Insurance 427 8589 366 023
Conferences and seminars 12 500 -
IT expenses 354 017 504 022
Fuel and oil 229194 128 062
Postage and courier 429 3705
Printing and stationery 155 005 233 905
Repairs and maintenance 781771 178 514
Security {Guarding of municipal property) 244 804 158 575
Software expenses 685 609 802 009
Subscriptions and membership fees 7539 13722
Telephone and fax 80602 56 185
Travel - local 127 176 138 453
Stakeholder engagement 151 207 228 297
Assets expensed 18 245 5892
Electricity 198 164 226 817
Rates 27 830 26 768
Other board expenses 087 425 930 556
Board fees 1288 250 1 557 895
Staff gifts and welfare ’ 55 238 10 043
Cansulting 387 407 126 580
Recruitrment costs 25442 164 244
Board tools of trade ' 37 280 37 893
Staff training and development : - 210 525

10 451 021 9 699 625

*A portion of the total board fees has been disclosed under note 21( Employee related cost) as the applicable portion of
interim/acting fees paid inyear paid to the acting incumbent seconded by the hoard of directors.

** A breakdown of all the fees paid per board member has been disclosed under note 35(Directors Emolumants}.
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2024 2023
28. Project cost-Internal programs
Livestock and Crop Value Chain Expansion 225 335 717 786
Mechanisation Centre Operations 841 323 1 350 296
Social Facilitation 488 647 976 236
Career services and skills development 461 502 874 445
SMME Support and Development 317 202 60 022
CHDA Infrastructure Development 1741 899 1190 209
Fruit Cluster Development 181 600 557 600
Investment Promotion 11 585 291 571
Strategic Projects and Planning 63015 562 186
4332108 6 640 331
These are all CHDA internally funded projects.
27. Project cost-external projects
Presented previously
CHDM Kemani Industrial Park Critical Infgra - 3133 542
CHDM Livestock development project 190 0G0 1451317
CHDM Komani Industrial Park - 631 853
CHDM-[rrigation schema 52 080 598 711
CHDM-Eyethu Biltong 11 460 237 500
CHDM-Fettiliser blending - 88 791
CHDM Coal exploration mining - 498 809
CHDM-Investment Summit - 320000

The project expenditure disclosed is equivalent to the income recognised against project grant spending for externally
funded LED implementation support for 2024-R253 540 and and 2023-R 6 971 523.

28. Cash (used in) generated from operations

Deficit

Adjustments for:

Depraciation and amortisation

Gain on sale of assets and liabilities
Movements in provisions

Changes in working capital:
Receivables from exchange transactions
Other receivables from non-exchange fransactions
Statutory receivables

Prepayments

Payables from exchange fransactions
VAT

Unspent conditional grants and receipts
Bank overdraft

Principal Agent Payables

29. Taxation

Reconciliation of the tax expense

Reconciliation between applicable tax rate and average effective tax rate.

Applicable tax rate

CHRIS HANI DEVELOPMENT

(2 831700) (4 562 548)
4583642 4702502
723 825 -

(1 495 289) -
(2012978) {1 482 479)
(1996 898) (2 791 610)
719205 (2 876 007)

13 352 (25 700)
2394656 {7 596 529)
(2375009)  © 327 662
(253 540) (3 409 348)

15 796 5
(14514 301) 14 954 112
(17029 329) 6239 972
28.00 % 28.00 %
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

2024

Figures in Rand 2023
30. Financial instruments disclosure
Categories of financial instruments
2024
Financial assets
At amortised Total
cost
Pre-payments 15223 15223
Receivables from exchange transactions 11 856 733 11 856 733
Other receivables from nen-exchange transactions 2542 621 2 542 621
Cash and cash equivalents 2 800 628 2800626
Principal Agent Receivable 4055 289 4 055 286
21270492 21270492
Financial liabilities
At amortised Total
cost
Trade and other payables from exchange transactions 4328 524 4328 524
Unspent conditional grant 218 623 218623
Provisions 1747 340 1747 340
Principai Agent Payables 438 811 439 811
VAT Payable 12 016 041 12 016 041
Bank Overdraft 16 248 16 249
18 766 588 18 766 588
Residual interest
At amortised Total
cost
Share capital / contributed capital 100C 1000
2023
Financial assets
At amortised Total
cost
Receivables from exchange transactions 0843 755 9 843 755
Other receivables from non-exchange transactions 545723 545 723
Prepayments 28 575 28 575
Cash and cash equivalents 13 833871 13 833 671
Principal Agent Receivables 4774 484 4774 494
29026 218 29026 218
Financial liabilities
At amortised Total
cost
Trade and other payables frem exchange transactions 1933 868 1933 868
VAT Payable 14391 140 14 3€1 140
Provisions 3242 628 3242 629
Unspent conditional grants and receipts 472163 472 183
Bank overdraft 453 453
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figuras in Rand 2024 2023
30. Financial instruments disclosure (continued)
Principal Agent Payables) 14854112 14 864 112
34994 366 34 994 365
Residual interest
At amortised Total
cost
Share capital / contributed capital 1000 10600
Financial instruments in Statement of financial performance
2024
At amortised Total
cost
Interest income (calculated using effective interest method) for financial instruments at 240 048 240 048
amortised cost
Interest expense (calculated using effective interest method) for financial instruments (477 778) (477 776)
at amortised cost
(237 728) (237 728)
2023
At amortised Total
cost
Interest income (calculated using effective interest method) for financial instruments at 168 153 168 153
amortised cost
Intarest expense (caleulated using sffective intersst method) for financial instruments (4088 270) (4 088270)
at amortised cost
(3899117) (3899 117)
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2024 2023

31. Commitments

Authorised operational expenditure

Already contracted for but not provided for

. Order commitments below R30 000 6 260 39929

. Contrast commitments 707 000 682 000

. Order commitments abave R30 000 39 100 106 260
752 360 828 189

Total operational commitments

Authorised operationat expenditure 752 360 828189

Total commitments

Authorised operational expenditure 752 360 8285 189

2024

Order commitments below R30 000-The agency entered into a 12-month confracts for a panic button emergency system
with Red Guard Security, starting March 2024 to February 2025. The services were partially execututed to end June 2024,

Order commitments above R30 000-The agency entered into a 12-month contracts for alarm monitoring and armed

respense with Red Guard Security, starting November 2023 to October 2024. The services were partially execututed to end

June 2024

Contract commitments-There has been delays in the implementation on the Tulsaspark agresment on Waste Buyback

Centers' operations. The agreement was signed in March 2022, and there has been no movement to date due to

contractual challenges

The commiited expenditure relates to projects and operations / running expenses, and will be financed by available bank
balance and funds received for projects, retained surpluses, internally generated funds, and operational subsidy allocations,

efc.

CHRIS HANI DEVELOPMENT

ANNUAL REPORT 30 JUNE 2024



32, Contingencies

Tender litigation matter

Ongoing litigation matter in process where a bidder tack the entity fo court on the outcomes of a formal bid process. The
applicant (unsuccessful bidder) has challenged the first respondent (entity; and second respondent (awarded bidder) in a legal
matter involving the award relating to contract number PLBQO7/20-21 (Xonxa Machibini Pipeline and Break Pressure Tank
Construction). The applicant is challenging the tender awarded to the second respondent by the entity and has since filed for
an interdict suspending operaticns on site. The applicant further filed a request for independent legal review by the Makhanda
High Court, to allow for independent assessment on the bid evaluation, adjudication and award processes conducted by the
entity, and are seeking remedias for any bid irregularities that may have occurred in the award processes. There was no work
on site, and the legal review was still ongeing as at 30 June 2023, as any attempts to resolve the matter out of court had been
declined.

The Makhanda High Court issued a judgement, instructing that the entity re-evaluates the bid submissions, and reconsiders the
award if applicable. This judgement has been impractical to implerment or action, due to the i) time-lapse between the tender
closing to date having an impact on the validity of quoted prices, ii) the work awarded had baen partially done by the awarded
bidder, so the work to be evaluated was significantly reduced, and any re-evaluation process may not be practical. Lastly, the
entity had conducted an indapendent probity review of the award processes by its independent internal audit firm, who also
raised significant findings on the responsiveness of all the bidders in the submission of their bids, including the bid submission
of the applicant, that would result in non-responsiveness of their submission, and any award being declared irregular in nature.
The entity has thus retained its legal counsel and is in the process of filing a respanse with the Makhanda High Court on the
impracticality of effecting the conditions of the judgement issued, so the entity is not held in contempt of court.

However, as at 30 June 2024, the matter is still engeing, and remains unresolved, as the underlying principal-agent agresment
between the Chris Hani Development Agency (CHDA) and the Chris Hani District Municipality {CHDM), had subsequently come
to an end, and said project returned to the principal, so no longer within the implementing framework of the entity,

A contingent liability arises where the entity anticipates an outcome where the applicant's application may be favoured by the
court pracesses. There was a delay in responding to the bidder's follow ups and enquiries on status of tender award after
closing, resulting in their commencement of legal processes against the entity. It is thus reasonable at this stage to estimate
any contingent liability may only be limited to the applicant being awarded costs of suit, which would be a contingency payable
by the entity. A reasanable estimate has been conducted, and legal fees to be taxed to the entity have been estimated at

R 227 550.00, and this amount may only become payable in the new financial year.

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2024 2023

33. Related parties

Relationships

Controlling entity Chris Hani District Municipality (CHDM) 100%
shareholding

Related party transactions

Grant received from related parties

CHDA Operatichal Grant 2B 625984 23913043
CHDM Investment Summit Grant - 320000
CHDPM Komani Industrial Park Grant - 631 853
CHDM Komani Industrial Park Critical Infrastructure - 3133 542
CHDM Irrigation Scheme Grant 52 080 599 711
CHDM Livestock Development Grant 190 000 1451 317
CHDM Co-Operative Centrs Grant 7 188 251 8 000 000
CHDM Fettiliser Blending Grant - 98 791
CHDM Coal Mining Exploration Grant - 498 809
CHDM Biltong Factory Grant 11 480 237 500
CHDM Infrastructure Agengy Income 4936 576 2474 418
GHDM Infrastructure Implementation Grant 4G 492 963 95223 219
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34. Directors' emoluments

2023

A non-executive director (*) was appointsd as interim / acting Accaunting Officer (CEO) for the period July 2022 - April 2023
due fo resulting vacancy from former CEQ incumbent's resignation in April 2022, The CEQ position was filled from May
2023, and all acting allowances paid cut in interim / acting period were disclosed. There were alse changes in the
composition of the independent audit and risk committee (***), shared with the shareholder. The shareholder appointed a
new audit and risk committee during the year, and this is the same committee compaosition utilised inte the 2024 financial
year

2024

There were a number of exits (**) arising from non-executive director appointment changes effected by the shareholder, or
resignations. The Board Chalrparson also resignad in December 2023, resulting in the appointment of an Interim Board
Chairperson for the remainder of the financial year,

Non-executive

2024
Subsistence Directors' fees Committees Total
and Travel fees
Ms. W Dukuza (Interim Beoard Chairperscn) 4 286 102 00C - 106 286
Adv. AM Mini (Board Chairperson} 58 289 19 BOG - 77 769
Dr, ND Khewu 3850 150 0OC - 153 850
Mr. L Mboketho 2146 176 250 - 178 396
Mr, TR Ramabulana (Deputy Board Chairperson) 589 206 500 - 207 089
Prof. WA Plaatjes** - - 59 000 59 000
Mr, MM Mbenenge** - - 10 000 10 000
Adv. N Bleki - 98 000 - 98 000
Ms. Z Manxilana-Klassen** - - 53 000 53 000
Mr. AM Langa™ { Audit Committee Chairperson) 15192 - 222 000 237 192
Ms. M Makapela - 132 000 - 132 000
Mr. Y Madalo** 2391 - 80 000 62 391
86723 884 250 404 000 1374973
2023
Subsistence Directors' fees Committees Total
and Travel fees
Ms. W Dukuza (Interim Board Chairperson) - 15 000 - 15 000
Adv. AM Mini (Board Chairperson) 44 402 136 329 - 180 731
Dr. ND Khewu 6 793 162 000 - 168 793
Mr. AA Hala ( Chief Executive Officer) 25732 420 911 - 446 643
Mr. L Mbeokotho 14 294 143 663 - 157 957
Mr. TR Ramabulana (Deputy Board Chairperson) 3135 172 330 - 175 485
Ms. B Zantsi - 30 000 - 30 000
Ms. Z Kiviet - 47 000 - 47 000
Ms. A Kretzman - - 10 C00 10 000
Prof. WA Plaatjes** - - 32 000 32 000
Mr. MM Mbenenge** - - 30 000 30 000
Mr. G Rich** - - 16000 18 000
Mr. MK Mafani** - - 18 000 18 000
Ms. Z Manxilana-Klassen** - - 30 000 30 000
Mr. AM Langa*™ ( Audit Committee Chairpsrson) 2062 - 180 663 182725
Ms. M Makapela 2 963 - - 2963
Mr. Y Madelo*™* - 65 000 - 65 000
- - 35000 35000
99 381 1192 233 355 663 1 647 277
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2024

2023

35. Prior period errors

35.1 Receivables from sxchange transactions R 538.00

35.2 Receivables from non- exchange transactions R -9 280 374, this is due to derecognition of overspending grants.

35.3Principal Agent receivables R 3 102 892 this is additional principal agents identified
35.4 Payables from exchange transactions R -228 929, this is due to derecognition of principal agent payables

35.5 VAT Payable R 4 058 951 due to recognition of penalty and intererst charges cn outstnanding balance on sars vat

35.6 Unspent conditional grants and receipts R- 87 796 due to dereconiticn of principal agents

35.7 Principal Agent payables R1 343 457 dus to additional principal agent owing to third parties
35.8 Bank overdraft R483 to recgnition of bank acc that had a credit halance at year end

35.9 Project Income R -1 168 687,this is due to derecognition of principal agent

35.100ther income R -3 819,this is due fo a difference in tenant billing

35.11Project cost external -R1 188 687 this dus to principal agents that were discosed under projects
35.12General Expenses ~-R1 20,thgis is due to petty cash iterm added after year end

35.13 Interest and penalties R 4 056 325,this is due to recegnition of penalty and interest charged on overdue amount on

SARS VAT.
35.14 Directors emoluments R 99 381,this due to recognition of S&T costs in disclosure note,

35.15 Fruitless and Wasteful expenditure R4 068 270,this is due to recognition of VAT penalty and interest charged,
35.16 Irregular expenditure RS 544 425 this is due to re-allocation of payments paid on grants to overspending/unauthorised.

Statement of Financial Position

Receivables from exchange transactions 9843 755

Receivables from non- exchange transactions 545 723

Principal agent receivables 4774 493

VAT Payable 14 391 140

Payables 1933 869

Principal agent payables 14 954 112

Unspent conditional grants 472 163
Bank Overdraft 453
Statement of financial performance

Project income 6971 523

Other Income 11 609 181

Project Cost external (6 971 523)
Gengral Expenses (9 699 885)
Interest and penalties (4 068 270)
Disclosures -
Directors emoluments 1647 277
Fruitless and Wasteful expenditure 6 497 938
Irregular expenditure 13 182 308

36. Risk management

Liquidity risk

9 844 293
9 808 097
1671602
10 332 188
2162798
13610 655
539 959

8 140 210
11613 000
(8 140 210)
(9 698 488)

(11 945)

1547 896
2 429 668
3 637 884

The entity's risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The entity manages liguidity risk

through an engoing review of future commitments and credit facilities.

At 30 June 2024 Less than1 year Between 1 and 2 years Between 2 and 5 years Over 5 years
Trade and other Payables R 4 328 524 - - -

At 30June 2023

Trade and other Payables R 1 933 868 - - -
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2024 2023

36. Risk management (continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and trade debtors. The entity
has noted a possible risk arising from holding depoesits with one wall established financial institution.The are plans to
deversify investment portfolio to bettter manage risk exposure

Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows:

Financial instrument 2024 2023
Recsivables from exchange transactions 11 856 733 9 843 755
Cash and cash equivalents 2 800 626 13833 671

37. Going concern

We draw attention to the fact that at 30 June 2024, the entity had an accumulated deficit of R 2 831 700 and that the
entity's total assets exceed its liabilities by R 17 177 764.

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concem. This
basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of
liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary coursa of business.

The ability of the entity to continue as a geing concern is dependent on a number of factors. The most significant of thase is
that the directors continue to procure funding for the ongoing operations for the entity and that the subordination agreement
referred to in note 22 of these annual financial statemants will remain in force for so long as it takes to restore the solvancy of
the enfity.

Principal events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern:

There are emerging factors that may compromise the ability of the entity to operate as a going congern in future. These have
been identified as follows:

Material adjustments in the annual financial statements arising from incorrect recerding of prior period over-spending grants
recorded as receivables. This has had a material impact in reduction of receivables by the entity

The ongeing challenge in recovery of debtors balances owed to the entity by various third parties is also posing a challenge.
Most of the debt disclosed runs the risk of baing potentially bad debt that can never be recovered, which will have a material
impact in the entity's ability to service its current commitments and settle liabilities

The challenge with non-settlement of liabilities, especially the tax debt with SARS due to non-receipt of receivables is also a
challenge, as these balances are incurring interest and penalties due to late payment and the impact on the unracovered
receivables is affecting the entity’s ability to service this delt now and in future

The negative tax compliance also has a cumulative impact on own-income generation to supplement lost revenue as the
principal-agent agreement on infrastructure implementation has since not been renewed

The inability to generate revenue is further enabled and exacerbated by the decline in value of own-income generating assets,
due fo depreciation and limitation in Capex budget to replace depreciated and obsolete assets that can be utilised in own-
income generation activities

The antity is alse limited in its revenue source from the operational grant by the parent municipality, as operational expenditure

per annum exceeds the quantum of the annual budget allocation. This is also impacted by inability and challenges in in-income
generation, thus making it harder o maeet immediate operational expenditure and commitments on a month to month basis
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37. Going concern {confinued)
The agency alsc does not have a legacy of surplus funds and raserves in the bank, that can be utilised to supplement any
disruptions in own-income generation, and recovary of outstanding debt to fund immediate obligations. This then also poses a

cashilow challenge, and possible inability to cover immediate expenses as they bscome due, and increase litigation risk from
creditors

Management’s plan to remedy these events or conditions:

The board-approved financial recovery and turnaround plan is not being adequately monitored te manage the risks identified
above. The existing plan thus needs to be assessed, and its efficacy evaluated, and where possible, drastic amendments
effecied that are in line with the current financial challenges

The beard and management need to engage the parent municipality on issue of resolving the outstanding debt owed to the
entity, prior to board writing off on thase balances, with clsar repayment terms te service this debt

The entity is alse engaging the SARS unit on assistance in managing the tax debt, but this debt arrangement can only be
confirmed once the status on cutstanding receivables is resolved

The entity has to review existing debt collecticn and management policy, so any gaps can be identified affecting internal
processes on recovery of debt from third parties

An assessment of tha current financial and budget obligations of the entity needs to be conducted, so any possible cost-
minimisation efforts that can be explored be found to minimise impact on the over-stretched budgst

The board and management need to re-visit the strategic programmes under Programme?2 and Programme3, so any own-
income opportunities are tabled to the board, and clear financial models on revenue generation be identified, so own-incoms
can be generated from these high-impact projects in line with approved strategic objectives.

38. Evenis after the reporting date

There were no events identified in 2023/24 financial year.

39. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Opening balance as previously reported 6 497 938 2731715
Add: Fruitless and wasteful expenditure - current year* 477 776 4068 270
Add :Legal fees from non-compliance - 567 700
Less: Amount written off - (869 747)
Closing balance 6 975 714 6 497 938

*Cashflow related late payment penalties and interest.

40. Irregular expenditure

Opening balance as previously reported 13182 309 1803 352
Add: lrregular Expenditure - Unapproved salary increment - 1191608
Add: Irregular Expenditure-SCM process not followed*® 21760 192 624
Add: Irregular Expenditure - Award for the use of consultant - 450 000
Add: Irregular Expenditure - Prier period grant overspends - 9 544 425
Less: Irregular Expenditure recovered (156 288) -
Closing balance 13 047 781 13 182 309
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40. Irregular expenditure {continued)

2024:*No SCM process followed to incur project expenditure

SCM procurment process not followed to incur project related expenditure

The prior period irrsgular expenditure where an increment was approval and was investigated by the board in 2023/2024,
and sanctions applied against responsible official. The penalty was 1 month salary payable are maximum of 3 months equal
installments. This shows improvement in consenguance management practices in the entity.

Thig amount has been included in own income and receivables from exchange transactions in the Annual Financial
Statements,

The processing of prior period scm irregularities resulting in litigation on infrastructure bid also caused in-the last quarter,with
recomendations made to the board on implementation

41. Additional disclosure in terms of Municipal Finance Management Act
VAT
VAT payable 12 016 041 14 391 140

42, Deviation from supply chain management regulations

Paragraph 36 of the same gazette states that the accounting officer may dispense with the official procurement process in
certain circumstances, provided that he records the reasons for any deviations and reports them to the next meeting of the
accounting officer and includes a note to the annual financial statements.

Total deviations for the year thus equalled R 138 784

1.Emergency Case which amounts to R 120 560.00

2.Exceptional CGase which amounts to R 18 284.00

Most of the supply chain deviations arose from an extended electrical connection / supply challenge te the CHDA offices,
due to instance of cable theft. At this time, the agency had to make use of emergency callouts for generator repairs to
power office operations

43, Budget differences
Material differences between budget and actual amounts

43.1 Project Income: Budget difference is due to the anticipated Komani Industrial Park grant funds not being received to
support park operations during the year. These funds are usually utilised for covering security costs, minor repairs and
maintenance, and general park operations and expenses

43.2 Mechanisation Centre Own Income: Budget difference is due to the center not being able to generate the targetted
service fee revenue from ifs operations. There are significant challenges mechanisation machinery and equipment being
under disrepair, and there are plans to prioritise rapairs on mechanisation equipment that can be eccnomically repaired
43.3 Other Income Agency Fees: Budget difference is due to the bulk of the principat agent water / sanitation projects
being in the project closeout stages, and a key projact being under extended litigation and court interdict. This has affected
ability to earn fee revenue

43.4 Interest and Penaltiss: Budget difference is due to late payment interest charged on overdue supplier accounts
43.5 Project Cost Internal Programmes: Budget difference is due to addifional costs incurred in social facilitation and
community engagement, as well as planning costs on key development initiative implemented

43.6 Project Cost External: Budget diffsrence is due to the anticipated Komani Industrial Park grant funds not being
received 1o support park operations during the year. These funds are usually uiilised for covering security costs, mincr
repairs and maintenance, and general park operations and expenses

43.7 Depreciation and amortisatin: Budget difference is dua to delays in processing of planned asset disposal after
midyear asset verification and assessment was done.

44. Accounting by principals and agents

The entity is a party to a number of principal-agent arrangements, where the CHDA has entered to act as agent for a
number of principals. The CHDA essentially acts as an implementor, cn behalf of each of these third parties, programmes.

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2024 2023

44. Accounting by principals and agents (continued)

Details of the arrangment(s) isfare as follows:
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Figures in Rand 2024 2023

44. Accounting by principals and agents (continued)

1. AGRISETA (AGRICULTURAL SECTORAL EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY) / CHDA.|

CHDM made an agreement with CHDA for implementation of identified infrastructure projects on behalf of CHDM.There is a
Memorandum of Agresment signed by both parties where it details the obligation of the CHDM and CHDA,

1.1 Graduate Placement Programmae:

The entity acts as an implementing agent on behalf of the Seta, where it performs activities outside of its development
mandate. The role of the CHDA is recruitment, selection and placement of unemployed graduates seeking work -
placement assistance on behalf of the Seta towards its skilis development mandate, as well as implementation of skills
development initiatives targetted at local youth working with the Seta. There is a Memorandurn of Agreement (MOA)
entered into by both parties detalling obligations of both parties. The CHDA implements identified projects and charges a
flat / pre-arrangad administartion / project managemnt fee on implamentation of the skills project. The project expenditure is
funded by the discretionary grants aflocated to the skills project by the Seta, The CHDA works with the regional skills
development office in fulfilling its role as agent, and its related accountability role to the principal and project funder{s).

2.CETA(CONSTRUCTION SECTORAL EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY) / CHDA

2.1 Apprenticeship - Emalahleni Local Municipal Area - Carpentry:

The eniity acts as an implementing agent on behalf of the Seta, where it performs activities outside of its development
mandate. The role of the CHDA is recruitment, selection and placement of unemployed youth needing technical skills on
behalf of the Seta towards its skills development mandate, as well as implementation of skills developmeant initiatives
targetted at local youth working with the Seta. There is a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) entered intc by both parties
detailing cbligations of both parties. The CHDA implements identified projects and charges a pre-negotiated %
administartion / project managemnt fee on implementation of the skills project. The project expenditure is funded by the
discretionary grants allocated to the skills project by the Seta.The CHDA works with the regional skills development office
in fulfilling its role as agent, and its related accountabifity role to the principal and project funder(s)

2.2 Appll'enticeship ~ Inxuba Yethemba Local Municipal Area - Bricklaying:

The entity acts as an implementing agent on behalf of the Seta, where it performs activities outside of its development
mandate. The role of the CHDA is recruitment, selection and placement of unemployed youth needing technical skills on
behalf of the Seta towards its skills development mandate, as well as implementation of skills development initiatives
targeited at local youth working with the Seta. There is a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) entered into by both parties
detailing obligations of both parties. The CHDA implements identified projects and charges a pre-negotiated %
administartion / project managemnt fee on implementation of the skills project. The project expenditure is funded by the
discretionary grants allocated to the skills project by the Seta.

2.3 Apprenticeship « Enoch Mgijima Local Municipal Area - Carpentry:

The entity acts as an implementing agent on behalf of the Seta, where it performs activities outside of its development
mandate. The role of the CHDA is recruitment, selection and placemant of unemployed youth needing technical skills on
behalf of the Seta towards its skills developmant mandate, as well as implementation of skills development initiatives
targetted at local youth working with the Seta. There is a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) entered inte by both parties
detailing obligations of both parties. The CHDA implements identified projects and charges a pre-negotiated %
administartion / project managemnt fee on implementation of the skills project. The proiect expenditure is funded by the
discretionary grants allecated to the skills project by the Seta. The CHDA works with the regional skills development office
in fulfilling its role as agent, and its related accountability rele to the principal and project funder(s).

2.4 Apprenticeship - Enoch Mgijima Local Municipal Area - Roadwerks:

The entity acts as an implementing agent on behalf of the Seta, where it parforms activities outside of its development
mandate. The role of the CHDA is recruitment, selection and placement of unemployed youth needing technical skills on
behalf of the Seta towards its skills development mandate, as well as implementation of skills development initiatives
targetted at local youth working with the Seta. There is a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) entered into by both parties
detailing chligations of both parties. The CHDA implements identified projects and charges a pre-negotiated %
administartion / project managemnt fee on implementation of the skills project. The project expenditure is funded by the
discretionary grants allocated to the skills project by the Seta. The CHDA works with the regional skills development office
in fulfilling its role as agent, and its related accountability role to the principal and project funder(s).

2.5 Apprenticeship - Enoch Mgijima‘ Local Municipal Area - Electrical:

The antify acts as an implementing agent on behalf of the Seta, where it performs activities outside of its development
mandate. The role of the CHDA is recruitment, selection and placement of unemployed youth needing technical skills on
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44. Accounting by principals and agents (continued)

behalf of the Seta towards its skills development mandate, as well as implementation of skills development initiatives
targetted at local youth working with the Seta. There is a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) entered inte by both parties
detailing obligations of both parties. The CHDA implements identified projects and charges a pre-negotiated %
administartion / project managemnt fee on implementation of the skills project. The project expenditure is funded by the
discretionary grants allocated to the skills project by the Seta. The CHDA works with the regional skills development office
in fulfilling its role as agent, and its related accountability role to the principal and project funder(s).

3.CHDM {CHRIS HANI DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY) / CHDA
3.1 Co-operative Development Support

The entity acts as an implementing agent on behalf of the municipality, where it performs activities outside of its
development mandate. The role of the CHDA is managing and funding administartion of co-operative development funds on
behalf of the municipality, towards its local economic development {LED) programme. This also includes facilitative and
coordinating support on joint-implemented development projects by the CHDA and the CHCDC. There is a tripartite
Memorandum of Agreement (MOA} entered into by both parties, and the CHDM, detalling cbligations of all parties. The
CHDA implements identified projects and charges a 0% administration / project managemnt fee in its facilitation role. The
project expenditure is funded by municipal grant funds, allocated to the applicable directorate. The CHDA works with the
Integrated Planning and Economic Development (IPED) directorate within the CHDM in ulfilling its role as agent, and its
related accountability role to the principal and project funder(s).

3.2 Infrastructure (Water and Sanitation) Backlog:

The entity acts as an implementing agent on behalf of the CHDM, where it performs activities outside of its devalopment
mandate. The role of the CHDA is implementing and managing identified infrastructure prejects on behalf of the
municipality, towards the water /sanitation projects backlog eradication programme. There is a Memorandum of Agreement
(MOA) entered into by both parties detailing cbligations of both parties. The validity period was extended to end June 2024
to allow for effective project handover and completion of in-progress and approved infrastructure projects.The CHDA
implements identified projects and charges a 10% administartion / project managemnt fee per claims certificate submitted
per infrastructure projevct implemented. The entity relies on a panel of professional engineers and contractors to fulfil its
implementation role. The project expenditure is funded by infrastructure grants allocated to the municipality under MIG /
WSIG / WSIG.The CHDA works with the Technical Services / Engineering directorate within the CHDM in fulfilling its role as
agent, and its related accountability role to the principal and project funder{s)

3.3 Livestock Improvement (Wool Growers) Animal Placement:

The entity acts as an implementing agent on behalf of the municipality, where it performs activities outside of its
development mandate. Tha role of the CHDA is implementing and managing identified livestock improvement and braeding
support projects on behalf of the municipality, towards its focal economic development (LED) pregramme. This also
includes administartive support and administartion of funding allocation toward delivery of livestock to identified farmers.
There is a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) entered into by both parties, ending June 2024, detalling obligations of both
parties. The CHDA implements identified projects and charges a 0% administration / project managemnt fee in its
facilitation role. The project expendifure is funded by municipal grant funds, allocated to the applicable directorate. The
CHDA works with the Integrated Planning and Economic Development (IPED) directorate within the CHDM in ulfilling its
role as agent, and its related accountability role to the principal and project funder(s).

4.ECDRDAR (EASTERN CAPE RURAL DEVELOPMENT AND AGRARIAN REFORM) / CHDA

4.1 Irrigation Scheme Payroll'Support:

The entity acts as an implementing agent on behalf of tha department, where it performs activities outside of its
development mandate. The role of the CHDA is administration and management of the irrigation scheme payroll function an
behalf of the department, towards its irrigation scheme revitalisation support programme, There is a Memorandum of
Agreement (MOA) entered info by both parties, detailing obligations of all parties. The CHDA implements identified projects
and charges a 10% administration / project managemnt fee in its facilitation rele. The project expenditure is funded by
departmental grant funds, which is drawn down in advance fo enable the CHDA to fulfil its support function. The CHDA
works with the Office of the HOD within the department in ulfilling its rele as agent, and its related accountability role to the
principal and project funder(s)

5. EMLM (ENOCH MGIJIMA LOCAL MUNICIPALITY) / CHDA
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44. Accounting by principals and agents {(continued)
5.1 Komani Eco-Industrial Park (KIP) Operator Support:

The entity acis as an implemesnting agent on behalf of the municipality, where it performs activities outside of its
development mandate, The CHDA was awarded the role of park operator via a council resolution passed by the
municipality, with the key focus of facilitating and driving investment inte the district threugh effective management of park
operations. The CHDA is alsc tasked with park tenant lease management, and rental collection functions on Behalf of the
municipality. There is a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) entered into by both parties, detailing ohligations of all parties.
The CHDA implements identifisd projects and currently charges 0% administration / project managemnt fee in its facilitation
role. The drawing of a managemnt fee is being negotiated with the municipality, as is currently not formalised per the
current MOA. The project expenditurs is funded by & CHDM KIP operational grant, which is drawn down in advance to
enable the CHDA to fulfil its support function, as well as rentals funds collected and re-investad in park management.
operations.The CHDA woerks with the Office of the Municipal Manager, and the Integrated Planning and Ecanomic
Development directorate within the municipality in ulfilling its role as agent, and its related accountability role to the principal
and project funder(s),

5.2 Lawrence Delange Nature Reserve Game Farming Support:

The entity acts as an implementing agent on behalf of the municipality, where it performs activities outside of its
development mandate. The CHDA was awarded the role of game park operator via a council resolution passed by the
municipality, with the key focus of facilitating and driving tourism into the district through effective management of game
park / nature reserve tourism visits by overseas travellers for hunting safaris. The CHDA engaged a hunting safari as
technical apriner to drive and support the game park hunting safari visits on open season. There is a Memarandum of
Agreement (MOA} enterad into by both parties (CHDA and EMLM), and another {CHDA and Avuna Safari) detailing
obligations of all parties. The CHDA implements identified projects and currently charges 10% administration / project
managemnt fee in its facilitation role. This fee is proportionate to the number of animals approved for hunting per set quota
per season, and tourists are charged a rate per type of animal hunted. The hunting revenue is collected onbehalf of the
muricipality, and percentage adminitartion fee witheld by CHDA.The CHDA works with the Office of the Municipal Manager,
and the Integrated Planning and Eccnomic Development directorate within the municipality in ulfilling its role as agent, and
its related accountability role to the principal and project funder{s)

6, HWSETA (HEALTH AND WELFARE SECTORAL EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY) / CHDA
6.1 Learner Work Readiness Placement Programme:

The entity acts as an implementing agent on behalf of the Seta, where it performs activities outside of its development
mandate. The role of the CHDA is recruitment, selection and placement of TVET college learners seeking work - readiness
training assistance on behalf of the Seta towards its skills development mandate, as well as implementation of skiils
development initiatives targstted at local youth working with the Seta. There is a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA)
entered into by both parties detailing obligations of both parties. The CHDA implements identified projects and charges 0%
administartion / preject managemnt fee on implementation of the skills project. The project expenditure is funded by the
discretionary grants allocated fo the skills project by the Seta. The CHDA works with the regional skills development office
in fulfilling its role as agent, and its related accountability role to the principal and project funder{s).

7. LGSETA (LOCAL GOVERNMENT SECTORAL EDUCATION AND TRAINING AUTHORITY)
7.1 Learnership - Disaster and Risk Management - Water/Sanitation:

The entity acts as an implementing agent on behalf of the Seta, where it performs activities outside of its development
mandate. The role of the CHDA is recruitment, selection and placement of employed persons seeking stechnical skills
development assistance on behalf of the Seta towards its skills development mandate, with a focus on assisting focal
municipalities improving their techincal and engineering skills. There is a Memorandum of Agreement {MOA) entered into
by both parties detailing obligations of both parties. The CHDA irmplements identified projects and charges an
administartion / project managemnt fee on implaementation of the skills project. The project expenditure is funded by the
discretionary grants allocated to the skills project by the Seta. The CHDA works with the regional skills development office
in fulfilling its role as agent, and its related accountability rale to the principal and project funder(s).

7.2 Learnership - Water Treatment QOperations - Water/Sanitation:

The entity acts as an implementing agent on behalf of the Seta, where it performs activities outside of its developmant
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mandate. The role of the CHDA is recruitment, selection and placement of employed persons seeking stechnical skilis
development assistance on behalf of the Seta towards its skills development mandate, with a focus on assisting local
municipalities improving their techincal and engineering skills. There is a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) entered into
by both parties detailing obligations of bath parties. The CHDA implements identified projects and charges an
administartion / project managemnt fae on implementation of the skills project. The project expenditure is funded by the
discretionary grants allocated to the skills project by the Seta.The CHDA works with the regional skills development office
in fulfilling its role as agent, and its related accountability role to the principal and project funder(s).

7.3 Learnership - Water Treatment Control - Water/Sanitation:

The entity acts as an implementing agent an behalf of the Seta, where it performs activities cutside of its development
mandate. The role of the CHDA is recruitment, selection and placement of employed persons seeking stechnical skills
development assistance on behalf of the Seta towards its skills development mandate, with a focus on assisting local
municipalities improving their techincal and engineering skills. There is a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) entered into
by both parties detailing obligations of both parties. The CHDA implements identified projects and charges an
administartion / project managemnt fee on implementation of the skills project. The project expenditure is funded by the
discretionary grants allocated to the skills project by the Seta.The CHDA works with the regional skills development office
in fulfilling its role as agent, and its related accountability role to the principal and project funder(s),

7.4 Learnership - Water Reticulation Services - Water/Sanitation:

The entity acts ag an implementing agent on behalf of the Seta, where it performs activifies outsida of its development
mandate. The role of the CHDA i3 recruitment, selection and placement of employed persans seeking stechnical skills
development assistance oh behalf of the Seta towards its skills development mandate, with a focus on assisting local
municipalities improving their techincal and engineering skills. There is a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) entered into
by both parties detailing obligations of both parties. The CHDA implements identified projects and charges an
administration / project managemnt fee on implementation of the skills project. The project expenditure is funded by the
discretionary grants allocated fo the skills project by the Seta. The CHDA works with the regional skills development office
in fulfilling its role as agent, and its related accountability role to the principal and project funder(s)

7.5 Bursaries - Public Management / Agriculture / Development Studies:

The entity acts as an implementing agent on behalf of the Seta, where it performs activities outside of its development
mandate. The role of the CHDA is recruitment, selection and applying for study bursary assistance on behalf of employed
persons, and those who are post-matric candidates to access study opporiunities. The entity works an behalf of the Sata
towards its skills development mandate, with a focus on assisting local communities access tertiary and further educationa
nd training opportunities. There is a Memorandum of Agreement {(MOA} entered into by both parties detailing obligations of
bath parties. The CHDA implements identified projects and charges an administartion / project managemnt fee on
implementation of the skills project. The project expenditure is funded by the discretionary grants allocated to the skills
project by the Seta. The CHDA works with the regional skills development office in fulfilling its role as agent, and its related
accountability role to the principal and project funder(s).
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Enfity as agent

1.The parties may renew this MOU for a further three(3) years,provided that the written agreement to that effect is achieved
prior to the expiry thereof. The MOU can be terminated by either party upon the provision of 90 days written notice to the
other party with no cost implicationsT

Revenue recognised

The aggregate amount of revenue that the entity recognised as compensation for the transactions carried out on behalf of

the principal is. Agriseta R10 000, CHDM Infrastructure R4 936 576.27 . ECDRDAR R2 20919,12,CETA R 61 108.55 and
CHCDC R 0.00,HWSETA R0.00(2023: R 42000,LGSETA R 34 028.00 {2023: R),Livestock Woalgrowers R 0,00

Additional information

Amount of revenue received on behalf of the principal during the reporting period

CHDM Infrastructure Project 49492 963 95223219
ECDRDAR 1625706 1 899 465
CETA- Apprenticeship 1726 946 1517 768
HWSETA 77 000 42 000
CETA-Internship 57 000 258 201
LGSETA 855 445 11286 687
CHDM Co- Operative support{CHCDC 7 188 251 8 000 co0
CHDM Llvestock-Weolgrowers 1365 000 -
AGRISETA 90 000 -
62478 311 108 065 341
Unspent Funds
CETA-Internship 14 338 -
HWSETA 85629 . 21654
LGSETA 68 637 48 621
AGRISETA 200 000 -
291 504 70 275
Amount of expenses paid on behalf of the principal during the reporting period
CHDM-Infrastructure Project 49492 963 95223 219
ECDRDAR 1625 706 1899 465
CETA 1726 948 1517 769
HWSETA 77 00C 42 000
CHDM Cao- Operative support(CHCDC) 7 188 251 8 000 000
CHDM Livestock-Woolgrowers 1385 000 -
LGSETA B55 445 1126 687
AGRISETA 90 000 -
CETA-Internship 57 000 256 201
62478311 108 065 341
Receivables
CHDM-Infrastructure Project 2 609 237 2 495 865
ECDRDAR 52 608 415 174
CETA-Apprenticeship 157 843 117 633
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CETA-Internship - 42 682

CHDM Co- Operative support(CHCDC) 1235601 1235600
4 055 289 4 306 934

Receivables and/or payables recognised based on the rights and obligations established in the binding

arrangement(s)

Irregular expenditure

CHDM Infrastructure

Opening balance 36690618 32 357 819

Add Irregular expenditure-Contract Irregularities - 4 332 800

Less: Ameunt written off (36690619} -

- 36690619

A declaration of supply chain management non-compliance should ba noted for the infrastructure contract award made in

prior period, which was subsequently investigated by the principal / parent municipality, and written off as irregular

expendifure in 2023-2024. A probity review was conducted by the entity's internal auditors, and it was note that there were

significant irregularities, and there should not have been an award, as all bidders were nen-responsive. The entity's

Accounting Officer and entity's Accounting Authority are processing a recommended way forward in commencing an
investigation against internal officials respeonsible for the scm nen-compliance and resulting litigation costs.[Additional info]

Commitments
Contract commitments -
Expenses incurred on behalf of the principal 317 625

241125 406

237 540

317625 241 362 946

All categories

Opening balance 278 053 5685 273483 225
Revenue that principal Is entitled to 317625 4 570 340
Write-offs, settlements or waivers of amounts that reduce the amount that the pringipal (36 690 619) -
is entifled to

241680571 278 053 565

CHRIS HANI DEVELOPMENT ANNUAL REPORT 30 JUNE 2024






